Public Document Pack

BRENTWOOD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda

Licensing/Appeals Sub-Committee

Thursday, 15 September 2016 at 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Town Hall

Membership (Quorum — 3)

Clirs Mrs Murphy, Newberry and Ms Rowlands

Agenda
Item

Item

Appointment of Chair

Administrative Function

Members are respectfully reminded that, in determining the
matters listed below, they are exercising an administrative
function with the civil burden of proof, i.e. ‘on the balance of
probabilities’. The matter will be determined on the facts before
the Sub-Committee and the rules of natural justice will apply.

Declaration of Interests

Application for Review of Premises License - Licensing Act
2003 - Brentwood Snooker Club T/A The Sports Lounge, 40
High Street, Brentwood, CM14 4AJ

1

Wards(s) Page No
Affected

Brentwood 5-312
South

Governance & Member Support Officer: Jean Sharp (01277 312655)
Brentwood Borough Council, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex CM15 8AY

B01277 312 500 B www.brentwood.gov.uk



http://www.brentwood.gov.uk/

(.

Head of Paid Service

Town Hall
Brentwood, Essex
07.09.2016



Information for Members

Substitutes

The names of substitutes shall be announced at the start of the meeting by the Chair and the substitution shall cease

at the end of the meeting.

Where substitution is permitted, substitutes for quasi judicial/regulatory committees must be drawn from Members
who have received training in quasi- judicial/regulatory decision making. If a casual vacancy occurs on a quasi
judicial/regulatory committee it will not be filled until the nominated member has been trained.

Rights to Attend and Speak

Any Members may attend any Committee to which these procedure rules apply.

A Member who is not a member of the Committee may speak at the meeting. The Member may speak at the Chair’s
discretion, it being the expectation that a Member will be allowed to speak on a ward matter.

Members requiring further information, or with specific questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer
at least two working days before the meeting.

Point of Order/ Personal explanation/ Point of Information

Point of Order

A member may raise a point of order
at any time. The Chair will hear them
immediately. A point of order may
only relate to an alleged breach of
these Procedure Rules or the law.
The Member must indicate the rule
or law and the way in which they
consider it has been broken. The
ruling of the Chair on the point of
order will be final.

Personal Explanation

A member may make a personal
explanation at any time. A personal
explanation must relate to some
material part of an earlier speech by
the member which may appear to
have been misunderstood in the
present debate, or outside of the
meeting. The ruling of the Chair on
the admissibilty of a personal
explanation will be final.

Point of Information or
clarification

A point of information or clarification
must relate to the matter being
debated. If a Member wishes to
raise a point of information, he/she
must first seek the permission of the
Chair. The Member must specify the
nature of the information he/she
wishes to provide and its importance
to the current debate, If the Chair
gives  his/her  permission, the
Member will give the additional
information succinctly. Points of
Information or clarification should be
used in exceptional circumstances
and should not be used to interrupt
other speakers or to make a further
speech when he/she has already
spoken during the debate. The ruling
of the Chair on the admissibility of a
point of information or clarification
will be final.




Information for Members of the Public

@ Access to Information and Meetings W Webcasts

You have the right to attend all meetings of the Council All of the Council’s meetings are webcast, except where
and Committees. You also have the right to see the it is necessary for the items of business to be considered
agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working in private session (please see below).

days before the meeting, and minutes once they are

published. Dates of the meetings are available at If you are seated in the public area of the Council
www.brentwood.gov.uk. Chamber, it is likely that your image will be captured by

the recording cameras and this will result in your image
becoming part of the broadcast. This may infringe your
Human Rights and if you wish to avoid this, you can sit
in the upper public gallery of the Council Chamber.

ﬁ Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee
meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee meetings
as a means of reporting on its proceedings because it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to
its local communities.

Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar devices to make recordings, these
devices must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or committee.

If you wish to record the proceedings of a meeting and have any special requirements or are intending to bring in
large equipment then please contact the Communications Team before the meeting.

The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has been discussed prior to the
meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not disrupt proceedings.

The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording and use of social media if any of
these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting proceedings at the meeting.

@ Private Session

Occasionally meetings will need to discuss some of its business in private. This can only happen on a limited range
of issues, which are set by law. When a Committee does so, you will be asked to leave the meeting.

@ modern.gov app
View upcoming public committee documents on your Apple or Android device with the free modern.gov app.

é} @ Access 0 Evacuation Procedures

There is wheelchair access to the Town Hall from the | Evacuate the building using the nearest available exit
Main Entrance. There is an induction loop in the Council and congregate at the assembly point in the North Front
Chamber. Car Park.


https://brentwoodwebdav.moderngov.co.uk/f8614670-0560-4d7c-a605-98a1b7c4a116-066-427a5f39-5a686c62-65376d6c/AgendaDocs/7/3/5/A00001537/$$Agenda.doc#http://www.brentwood.gov.uk
http://www.moderngov.co.uk/

Agenda Item 4

15 September 2016
Licensing and Appeals Committee

Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing in respect of an Application for a Review
of a Premises Licence — Licensing Act 2003

Brentwood Snooker Club — T/A The Sports Lounge

Report of: Gary O’Shea — Principal Licensing Officer
Wards Affected: Brentwood South

This report is: Public

1. Executive Summary

1.1  This report provides information relating to an application for a review of the
premises licence held in respect of in respect of Brentwood Snooker Club,
currently trading as the Sports Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood, CM14
4AJ.

1.2 Members are requested to determine the application for review submitted under
provision of section 51, Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) by the Council’s
Environmental Health and Pollution team, having regard to the operating
schedule, the representations received, the Council’'s Statement of Licensing
Policy and the four Licensing objectives.

1.3  The review has been submitted following concerns over noise and disturbance,
failure to comply with licence terms and conditions and perceived inability by the
licence holder to adequately promote the licensing objectives.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Each application must be considered on its individual merits and, therefore, no
recommendations may be made. However, Section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003
requires the licensing authority to have regard to the application for review and
any other valid representations and to take such steps as listed below that it
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. These are:

¢ To modify the conditions of the licence; and/or

¢ To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; and/or
e Toremove the designated premises Supervisor; and/or

e To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; or

e To revoke the licence; or

e To refuse the application for review in its entirety

Paage 5
L] V\uv 7



3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Introduction and Background

An authorisation is required in respect of any premises where it is intended to
conduct one or more of the four licensable activities, these being:

e Sale of alcohol

e Supply of alcohol (in respect of a club)
o Regulated Entertainment

e Provision of Late Night Refreshment

An appropriate authorisation is either, a premises licence, a club premises
certificate or a Temporary Event Notice.

Licence holders are required, when offering any licensable activity, to ensure that
they promote the licensing objectives at all times. The operating schedule of the
application contains details of the activities applied for and the control measures
that the applicant will have in place in order to promote these objectives. Such
measures will, where appropriate, be converted into enforceable conditions on
any licence issued.

The licence for the premises known as the Sports Lounge was transferred to the
current licence holders having been initially applied for by and granted to, a
Snooker Club. In the absence of any valid application to vary the licence, the
Sports Lounge is required by law to operate and conduct all licensable activity in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the original (Snooker Club) Licence.

A provision for any Responsible authority or any ‘other person’ is built into
section 51 of the Act, which permits them to apply for a review of the premises
licence in cases where it is believed or perceived that the licensing objectives are
not being adequately promoted.

The four licensing objectives are;

e Prevention of crime and disorder
e Prevention of public nuisance

e Public safety

e Protection of children from harm

No objective carries any more weight than any other. These objectives are the
only matters that may be considered relevant in determination of any application,
including an application for review.

The existing Premises Licence permits the following:

e Sales of alcohol Monday to Sunday 11:00AM to 02:30AM
e Indoor Sporting Events Monday to Sunday 11:00AM to 03:00AM

No other licensable activities are permitted under the current authorisation

Page 6



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

6.1

The Application

This application was received on 2 June 2016 from the Council’s Environmental
Health and Pollution team following complaints and investigations relating to
noise and disturbance from the premises.

A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 1.

The grounds for review have been stated on the application and are concerned
in the main with public nuisance relating to noise and disturbance from the
premises, particularly late at night.

Following submission of the application it was advertised in accordance with
regulations for a period of 28 days, during which time any other responsible
authority or ‘any other person’ may submit representation either in support of, or
against the review. Such representations are not restricted to only the public
nuisance obijective; they may be submitted in respect of any of the four licensing
objectives.

Following advertising of the application there were the following representations
received:
a) Essex Police
b) The Licensing Authority
¢) A Resident living above the premises
d) A petition from local shop owners and customers of the premises (some in
generic letter form) in support of the premises i.e. against the application
for review.

The representations are based on the objectives of public nuisance,
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. These are attached in
full as Appendix 2 (representations a, b above), Appendix 3
(representation ¢ above) and Appendix 4 (representation d above).

Reasons for Recommendation
No recommendation is made as this matter is required to be considered on merit

by Members of the Sub-Committee in isolation, having considered all relevant
facts.

All such proposals will be converted into conditions on a licence if granted.

Consultation

The regulations of the Licensing Act 2003 outline the requirements for the
advertising of applications for review. These require the licensing authority to
advertise the application by way of notice at the premises for 28 consecutive
days.

Page 7



6.2

6.3

6.4

Regulations also require that the applicant give a copy of the application to the
licence holder on the same day as submission of the application to the licensing
authority.

There are no other statutory requirements for advertising of any application,
however, the relevant Ward Councillors are notified and details of all applications
received along with the time limit for receipt of representations is posted on the
Council website.

For the first three days of the consultation the notice on display was white in
Colour, however, this was replaced with a blue notice, this being the prescribed
colour as laid down in regulations to the Act. Whilst this means that the notice
was technically wrong for the first three days, it is very unlikely to have
detrimentally affected the process and it has therefore been considered that the
consultation is unaffected by such a minor error. Indeed there is case law to
support this view where in the matter of D&D Bar Services Ltd v Romford
Magistrates' Court and London Borough of Redbridge the judge found that minor
errors in following regulations were not fatal to an application for review when he
said:

"It could never have been in the intention of Parliament that minor errors on a
notice or advertisement for a licensing review should make any subsequent
consideration of the licence void. Such an approach would lead to absurd
consequences."

7. Statement of Licensing Policy

7.1

7.2

There are no specific issues arising from this application in relation to the
Councils’ Statement of Licensing Policy.

The following extracts from the Councils’ Statement of Licensing Policy are
brought to the general attention of Members:

(1.4) Nothing in this Statement of Policy should be regarded or interpreted
as an indication that any requirement of law may be over-ridden; each
application will be considered and treated on its own merits.

(7.2) When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have
regard to:-
(a) The Licensing Act 2003, as amended and the licensing objectives.
(b) Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003, as amended.
(c) Any supporting regulations.
(d) This Statement of Licensing Policy.

(9.2) Licensing is about the appropriate control of licensed premises,
qualifying clubs, temporary events and the people who manage them or hold
personal licences within the terms of the 2003 Act. Where relevant
representations are made, the Licensing Authority will seek to make objective

Page 8



8.1

judgments as to whether conditions may need to be attached to various
authorisations in order to secure achievement of the licensing objectives. Any
conditions arising from the operating schedule or as a result of representations
will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed
premises on those attending the premises and members of the public living,
working or otherwise engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. These
conditions will cover matters that are within the control of individual licensees
and others with relevant responsibilities.

(9.2) The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the licensing function
cannot be used for the general control of nuisance or the anti-social behaviour of
individuals once they are beyond the direct control of the licensee of any
premises concerned. However, other mechanisms may be utilised, where
appropriate, to tackle unruly or unlawful behaviour of consumers when beyond
the control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or
authorisation concerned. These include:

(a) Planning controls.

(b) Positive measures to create a safe and clean town environment in

partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other services

within the Local Authority.

(c) The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks,

street cleaning and litter patrols.

(d) Powers of Local Authorities to restrict consumption of intoxicating liquor in

designated public places other than Premises licensed for 'on' sales.

(e) Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social

behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices.

(f) The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such

premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk.

(g) The confiscation of alcohol from children and adults in designated areas.

(h) The power of the Police, other responsible authorities or a local resident or

business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.

(i) Action under the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006.

(16.6) The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible
management of the premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and
the adoption of best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures
for the achievement of all the licensing objectives. For this reason, these
elements should be specifically considered and addressed within an
applicant’s operating schedule.

Relevant Sections of the Secretary of State’s Guidance

The following extract of the section 182 guidance as published by the Secretary
of State are brought to the attention of Members.

(9.41) Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All
licensing determinations should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They
should take into account any representations or objections that have been
received from responsible authorities or other persons, and representations
made by the applicant or premises user as the case may be.

Page 9



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

(9.42) The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to
what it is intended to achieve.

(9.43) Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or
step would be suitable to achieve that end. Whilst this does not therefore require
a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the
authority should aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would
impose on the premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to
restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the
promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority
ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to
consideration of the

promotion of the objectives and nothing outside those parameters. As with the
consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should consider wider
issues such as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of the
business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when imposing
conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing
authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of
the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the
determination.

Legal Considerations

The relevance of representations from customers to the premises, who do not
experience noise issues that neighbours may experience and of shop premises
that are closed before the licensed premises becomes busy are matters for
Members to determine as to the degree of weight merited in this case.

In balance to 9.1 (above), public nuisance under the Act is given its broad
common law meaning and could therefore include low level nuisance affecting
only a few people. Indeed the ‘Hope and Glory’ case where a decision of
Westminster Council was upheld on appeal determined that a public nuisance
under the Act was merely something that is more than a ‘Private nuisance’. This
does lead to some debate as to whether one person being affected can lead to a
public nuisance.

Notwithstanding 9.2 (above) there is no restriction on hearsay evidence and
there are mentioning’s in the representations of one neighbour having to sleep
with earplugs and another flat where the turnover of residents is said to be high
due to impact of noise. In such cases, again, it is for Members to look at this
evidence and to determine what weight if any is appropriate.

If satisfied that there is a public nuisance on balance then the discretion of the
committee is wide and all options as highlighted in paragraph 2.1 are available.

Page 10



9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

In addition to the public nuisance question, Members are permitted to consider
matters relating to the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety as
outlined in the representations received.

The justification behind any decision in respect of this application or the
attachment of conditions, or variation of terms applied for must be recorded and
given to the applicant and any person that has made representation.

Section 52 of the Act requires the licensing authority to have regard to the
application for Review and any other valid representations and to take such
steps as listed in paragraph 2.

There is a right of appeal to Magistrates Court by any person or party aggrieved
by any decision made by the Sub-Committee.

Appendices to this report

e Appendix 1 - Application For Review

o Appendix 2 - Representations - Responsible Authorities

e Appendix 3 - Representations — Other Persons (Resident)

e Appendix 4 — Representations against the review i.e. in support of the
premises

Report Author Contact Details:

Name: Gary O’'Shea
Telephone: 01277 312503
E-mail: gary.oshea@brentwood.gov.uk

Page 11



SPORTS LOUNGE, 40 HIGH ST BRENTWOOD CMi4 4A]

APPENDIX 1

APPLICATION FOR
THE REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE

Stephen Blake
on behalf of

Brentwood Borough Council, Environmental Health & Pollution

26 JULY 2016

Page 12



Page 13



Brentwood Borough Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Stephen Paul Blake on behalf of Brentwood Borough Council, Environmental Health and
Pollution

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51/

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
The Sports Lounge,

40 High Street,

Post town: Brentwood Post code (if known) CM14 4A]J

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Mr Alfie Adam

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
PRM 0075

Part 2 - Applicant details

ITam
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) O
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) /
3) a member of the club to which this application relates O

(please complete (A) below)

Page 14



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr [ Mss [ Miss [ Ms O Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v yes
I am 18 years old or over O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 15




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Environmental Health and Pollution
Town Hall,

Ingrave Road,

Brentwood,

Essex. CM15 8AY

Telephone number (if any)
01277 312500

E-mail address (optional)
stephen.blake @brentwood.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v°

1) the prevention of crime and disorder O
2) public safety O]
3) the prevention of public nuisance v
4) the protection of children from harm O

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

The Environmental Health and Pollution authority are requesting a Review of the premises license
for The Sports Lounge at 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex under the Prevention of Public
Nuisance objective.

The Environmental Health and Pollution authority have been investigating the premise under the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 for allegations that a noise nuisance exists at residential
properties on the High Street, Brentwood.

The investigation has provided evidence that a noise problem exists and has the likelihood to
recur. This conclusion has been established through the collection of evidence from sound
monitoring equipment, witness statements and Log sheets.

The premises License holder was informed about complaints via letters posted on 17" June 2015,
and a subsequent letter on 1%y anuary 2016 and by a meeting held at the premises on Wednesday
15™ July 2015.

On Wednesday 13™ May 2015 Environmental Health and Licensing officers attended the
complainants Flat at approximately 10:30pm. The officers witnessed noise from amplified TV
music and commentary together with loud shouting and voices from customers emanating from
the Licensed premises. This noise continued at the same level until the officers left at 11:40pm
later that evening.

This activity, and many other subsequent ones, has not addressed one of the key Licensing
objectives “The Prevention of Public Nuisance’. As a consequence, the Licensee has not
confidently addressed this objective.

Page 16




It is noted that there are no permissions on the current license permitting any form of live or
recorded music. Whilst both of these activities are deregulated on alcohol licensed premises
between 8am and 11pm daily, it has been witnessed that music has gone on past these hours. This
premises is therefore seemingly conducting unlawful licensable activity.

The opinion of the Environmental Health team is that the building is inappropriately designed for
the type of activities that are undertaken in the Sports Lounge. Primarily, the properties structure is
acoustically unsatisfactory between floor levels.

I therefore suggest that due to the complaints received and monitoring evidence undertaken, that
The Sports Lounge at 40 High Street, Brentwood is now operating outside the original Licensing
requirements/conditions of the current License. The present use, that of Televised sporting events,
parties and functions are not suitable and are incompatible with the structure of the property and
the present activity’s being carried out.

Due to the continued breach of the License objective ‘The Prevention of Public Nuisance’ it is
therefore recommended that since the noise nuisance cannol be conirolled by Management or
through the use of conditions that the Licence be suspended until AA Trading Ltd can provide
sufficient measures to deal with the noise nuisance issue. Such measures must satisfy the
Environmental Health authority’s concems.

Recommendations

s Suspend the licence until suitable measures are carried out to alleviate, to the satisfaction
of the Environmental Health Authority, the noise nuisance issue currently being
experienced in the Flats immediately above The Sports Lounge.

e The Committee may consider the reduction in the hours of Licensable activity at the
premises in order to serve to ease the concerns in the residential community.

As The Sports Lounge is now effectively operating as a bar, with entertainment, the
‘Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs’ (Institute of
Acoustics) confirm that (Para 2.4) ‘for premises where entertainment takes place less
frequently, music and associated sources should not be audible inside noise-sensitive
property between 23:00 and 07:00hrs’.

It is suggested that this time limit could be set as a provisional requirement until the
Licensee could make suitable provision to install satisfactory acoustic works to isolate
the Clubs activities from the residential properties.

Additionally:

e The Committee may see fit to impose further conditions to ensure that the Licensing
objectives are robustly adhered to.

e Ifthe licence, following the review is not suspended, it is strongly recommended and
requested that consideration be given to removing the exemptions brought about under
provision of the Deregulation Act 2015 and the Legislative Reform (Entertainment
Licensing) Order 2014, in respect of live and recording music respectively. This will
have the effect of removing the ability to undertake any performance of unregulated live
and/or recorded music between 8am and 11pm requiring an application from the Licence
holder to vary the licence to include either or both activities. It will enable the Licensing
authority’s granting the variation, to condition both activities in order to ensure adequate
promotion of the licensing objectives, particularly with regard to Public Nuisance.

Page 17




It is also evident that despite speaking and writing to the license holder on numerous
occasions and over a sustained period of time in an attempt to address matters in an
amicable fashion, there has been no attempt by the licence holder to work with the
authority to do this. This is evidenced through the fact that there has not been a single
response to any of our letters and absolutely no measures have been put in place to
reduce the nuisance being caused and witnessed.

Page 18




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance
note 3)

Schedule of attached documents

Appendix 1 Statement of Stephen Paul Blake Environmental Health Officer, Brentwood
Borough Council

Appendix 2 Statement of Maria Redman complainant

Appendix 3 Statement of David Carter: Environmental Health Manager, Brentwood
Borough Council

Appendix 4 Statement of Allan Wright: Environmental Health Technician, Brentwood
Borough Council

Appendix 5 Actions relating to Review of The Spor*t~ Lounge

Appendix 6 Correspondence from Environmental Health to Licensee regarding noise
problems dated 17™ June 2015

Appendix 7 Correspondence regarding representation from Environmental Health against an
application for a Temporary Event Notice (TEN88167) dated 61 uly 2015

Appendix 8 Correspondence from Environmental Health to Licensee regarding noise
problems dated 11" January 2016

Appendix 9 Supporting Evidence; selection of noise recordings of The Sports Lounge
Appendix 10 Copy of Premises License
Appendix 11 Recent advertising of Sports Lounge activities

Appendix 12 Environmental Health Licensing Authorities Closing Summary

Page 19




Please tick v yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the No
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year

LI T TP TT]

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them:

Application Reference: TEN88167
Date: 6™ July 2015
Dear Sirs

Re: The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood CM14 4AJ

Temporary Event Notice

Further to the above application of the 3" July 2015, I confirm that Environmental
Health (Pollution Control and Food and Health and Safety) have a particular concern.
Therefore with regard to the above premises, the Environmental Health Authority
wish to make representation against this application as the applicant has not
satisfactorily addressed the steps they intend to take to promote the licensing
objectives relating to The Prevention of Public Nuisance.

The reasons for our representation are detailed as:

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

e There is concern relating to the premises internal structure. At present, the
acoustic structure of the property is poor. Any amplified music will therefore
cause nuisance, particularly late into the night and early hours of the morning.

As this issue needs to be considered, it is thought that the matter can only be resolved
by presenting the application in its entirety before a Licensing Sub-Committee.

If I can be of any further assistance in this matter please do not hesitate to contact me
at the contact details below.

Yours Faithfully,

Steve Blake

Note: The TEN Application was withdrawn on receipt of this representation

Page 20




Please tick v’
yes

¢ Thave sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities ‘/
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

¢ Tunderstand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my ‘/
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature  S.P.Blake

...............................................................................................................

...............................................................................................................

Capacity  Environmental Health Officer

...............................................................................................................

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Page 21




Notes for Guidance

1.

v e

A responsible anthority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 22



Page 23



Appendix 1

C.J. Act 1967 Sec 9): M.C. Act 1980 ss 5A(3)(a) and 5B MC Rules, Rule 70

WITNESS STATEMENT
Name Stephen Paul Blake

Age (if over 18 Over 18
enter "over 18")

Occupation Environmental Health Officer

STATES: This statement consisting of 3 pages, is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in
evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it
anything which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 17" Day of May 2016
SIGNAtUre ..ccoovriieic e s

| confirm that | am the above person and that | am an Environmental Health Officer
within the Environmental Health Section at Brentwood Borough Council. My
responsibilities include investigating Statutory Nuisances, Contaminated Land, Air
Quality, Miscellaneous Public Health legislation and enforcement of Private Sector
Housing legislation and | have been working as an Environmental Health Officer in this
field for over thirty years.

A complaint relating to noise was received on 11" May 2015 from a complainant
concerning The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex and was assigned
to me for action.

On the 13™ May 2015 arrangements were made between myself and the complainant
to visit the complainants flat. On the 30™ May 2015 a joint visit was made to the flat by
David Carter Environmental Health Manager, Dave Leonard Licensing Officer and
Gary O’Shea Principal Licensing Officer. The officers, including me, arrived at
22:30hrs. Observations were noted of the noise emanating from the licensed property
immediately below, where a considerable amount of shouting was heard relating to
their supporting a football match. Additionally, music was clearly heard from the
Television sporadically during our visit. It was noted that both the shouting and the
noise/music from the television was clearly audible and intrusive in the flat.

Additionally, the commentary from the television was noted at the same volume as
that of the complainants, who was talking to my colleagues in the other room. These
observations continued at the same level until 23:40hrs when we left. Dave Leonard
and Gary O’Shea went to visit The Sports Lounge whilst David Carter and myself
continued our patrol of the High Street.

On the 3™ July 2015 Environmental Health received notification from the Licensing
Authority that a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) had been received. The Application
reference was TEN88167. Due to the complaint received and the recent visit to the

Signature . ........ ... i i

Page 24

[PD/SOW.EH]\



(C.J. Act 1967 Sec 9)

WITNESS STATEMENT OF (CONT’D) Page 2

complainants flat | sent a written reply confirming my concern and that | was making a
Representation, this is included in the report relating to the Review.

During the 14™ and 15™ June 2015 | received confirmation from the complainant that
the noise problem was continuing and | therefore sent a warning letter dated 17" June
2015 addressed to the Licensee, this is included in the report relating to the Review.

On the 15™ July 2015 at 14:00hrs a meeting was arranged at The Sports Lounge
where Peter Jones (Police Licensing), Dave Leonard Licensing officer, Ahmet Melin
(Premises Manager) and myself attended. During a discussion with Ahmet Melin |
confirmed that | had received a complaint from a nearby resident and that on visiting
the premises noise disturbance was confirmed. Additionally, | confirmed that the
acoustic quality between The Sports Lounge and the flats above were very poor and
that any shouting and music could be clearly heard and be intrusive. | concluded that if
he wished to offset noise problems to those living nearby, it would be wise to consider
improving the acoustic building structure between the two areas. Mr Ahmet Melin
confirmed that to achieve this would cost him at least £30,000 and that he was not
going to consider any acoustic improvements to the Licensed premises.

Subsequently several months after the meeting the complainant confirmed that there
had not been improvements in the sound acoustics and that the disturbance though ad
hoc was still occurring.

As there appeared to be no actions carried out by the Applicant to improve matters, |
made arrangements and installed the Councils Sound Level Meter eiuipment in the
complainants flat. This was carried out at approximately lunch time 6" November
2015.

On the 13" November 2015 | requested Allan Wright (Environmental Technician) to
retrieve the Sound Level Meter equipment. This was carried out successfully. Although
the recording obtained were significant minor evidence was collected at that time and
therefore a further appointment was made to install the noise equipment. Prior to the
Sound Level Meter equipment being further installed email confirmation was received
from the complainant that the situation remained as before.

On the 11" December 2015 by agreement between Allan Wright and myself the
Sound Level Meter was installed in the flat. Allan made arrangements and installed the
equipment at 14:35hrs that day.

On the 12" December 2015 at 20:30hrs a visit was made to the complainants flat by
David Carter and Dave Leonard. On their return to the office on Monday 14"
December 2015 both officers confirmed with me that the noise continued to be a
disturbance and that in this instant related to a party that was being held.

Due to a malfunction associated with the Sound Level Meter, | requested Allan Wright
to visit the complainants flat and correct the equipment, if possible. This he promptly
did on Monday 14™ December 2015 and he confirmed on his return that the meter was
operating satisfactorily when he left.

Signature . ... i e

Page 25



(C.J. Act 1967 Sec 9)

WITNESS STATEMENT OF (CONT'D) Page 3

Allan Wright then collected the noise equipment on Wednesday 23™ December 2015.
Due to the recently heard disturbance heard on the 14" December, a warning letter
relating specifically to the Party event was sent to the Licensee on the 11" January
2016.

Further confirmation was received from the complainant via emails that the activities
from the Sports Lounge were continuing to cause a disturbance.

A further arrangement was made with regard to setting up the Sound Level Equipment
where Allan Wright conferred with me and the equipment was installed on Tuesday 5
February 2016 and then collected on the 16™ February 2016.

Signature ......... ... i e

Page 26



Appendix 1

C.J. Act 1967 Sec 9): M.C. Act 1980 ss 5A(3)(a) and 5B MC Rules, Rule 70

THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND NOT
TO BE COPIED AND SERVED ON THE DEFENCE

Address: Brentwood Borough Council

Telephone: Home: BUSINESS: .....oiiciirirecir e

Delete dates that witness is not available for Court during 6 months following
date of the Statement

Month of Month of Month of

1 ]2 |3 |4 1|5 16 |7 |1 ]2 |3 14 1516 17 |1 12 13 14 [5 16 |7

8 |9 |10y11 |12 (13|14 (8 [9 |10f11 1213|148 [9 J10f11 (12|13 ]14

15|16 |17 |18 |19 12021 |15 |16 (17|18 (19120 (21 |15]|16 {17 18119120 | 21

22 123241252627 |28 (22123 |24 12526127 |28 122123 (241252627 |28

29 [ 30 | 31 29 {30 | 31 29 | 30 [ 31

8 |9 10|11 ]|12]13]14|8 |9 |10]|11]12 )13 1148 |9 |10]11[12]13]14

15116 117118 [19 |20 |21 |16 [16 |17 |18 |19 )20 |21 |16 (16|17 |18 [19 |20 |21

22 123124125126 (27 128 (22123 |24 12526 (27 |28 (22123124 125|26(27 |28

29 130 |31 29 |30 ) 3 29 130 | 31

Contact point, if different from aboVe: ........cocviiiiiiiririirccr e s s

Yo [0 [ (TN

Telephone NO: ...t

STATEMENT TAKEN BY: (Print DAME) ......cooociiiiiciciircccr et e sen e
Time statement taken: ..o e

(P2 TSI 7= 1= o A

[PD/SOWEH.1]

Page 27




Appendix 2
WITNESS STATEMENT

Name Maria Redman

Age (if over 18 Over 18
enter "over 18")

Occupation Resident in High Street, Brentwood

STATES:  This statement consisting of 3 pages, is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in
evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it
anything which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 24™Day of May 2016
Signature .........coociiiiivin e,

| am the above named person and | live in Flat 3, 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex
which is a flat on the second floor of the building, immediately above The Sports
Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex.

In March 2015 | was aware that the Snooker Hall at 40 High Street, Brentwood had
changed ownership and shortly afterward | was aware of an advert advertising the
new business opening in April the twenty fourth. After this time, | began to experience
a change in how the business was being operated.

The previous business had operated purely as a snooker venue and whilst they were
open all that | could hear during the night was the ‘clink’ of snooker balls hitting each
other and the occasional low level voices of those playing the game. | had been living
over this premises for over nine years and had no problem with this type of operation
and was not troubled by the noise.

Shortly after the business changed hands however, | noted a distinct change in
activity. One event in particular, on the 2" May 2015, a boxing match attracted over
one hundred and fifty people and the boxing event continued up to three o'clock in the
morning. | did text Ahmet Melin to tumn it down, which he did to certain extent, but the
event continued on to 06:00hrs and | still could hear the crowd laughing, cheering etc.
This caused severe sleep disturbance to me and kept me awake during this time.

On the 8" May 2015 at 21:00hrs the music from the Licensed premises was so loud
that | had to tum my TV volume up to almost full so that | could hear the TV. The
voices were so loud, | could almost hear what they were saying. | sent a text message
to the manager Ahmit Melin asking him to turn the music down and he chose to ignore
my request.

On Monday 11™ May 2015 | contacted Brentwood Borough Council in order to lodge a
complaint regarding The Sports Lounge applying for a Licence for live bands. As |
have been suffering great disturbance by their activity, | definitely did not want this
application to proceed. | commented also that the sound proofing was bad between
my flat and The Sports Lounge and that one way to deal with this problem would be to

Page 28



improve this. | asked that the Licensing and Environmental Health teams do
something about this.

On Wednesday 13" May in the evening the licensed premises had the TV on again
and again it was very loud. | had the feeling it was done on purpose to annoy me. This
noise continued after 21:50hrs that night.

It would appear that the very loud noise occurs regularly every Friday and Saturday
night/ early hours of the morning and also at any ad hoc events that might occur in the
afternoons, or possibly weekdays. Because of the poor acoustics between my flat and
the licensed premises all of these events can be clearly heard in my bedroom.

The following dates were the worst | have experienced as noted in my logs and
emails.

Thursday  21:05:15 Music and customers very loud. Started 23:00hrs-

00:12hrs+

Sunday 14:06:15 Noted loud music started 19:45 — 20:45hrs and continuing

Monday 15:06:15 Music very loud. Started 22:45 — 23:45hrs

Thursday 18:06:15 No music, but very loud shouting/laughing

Wednesday 12:08:15 Noise very bad, related to football and TV music
associated

Monday 26:10:15 Playing loud music. Women screaming on Friday night

Wednesday 28:10:15 Very loud music from TV

Sunday 01:11:15 00:05 music loud enough to keep Complainant awake.
Started 19:30hrs Saturday 31:10:15

Monday 02:11:15 Confirm that it was very noisy with DJ Saturday 31:10:15

Monday 07:12:15 Confirm very noisy 05/06/07:12:15

Wednesday 09:12:15 01:19hrs playing music and shouting. Done on purpose?

Sunday 13:12:15 Confirmed noise bad on Saturday 12:12:15

Monday 28:12:15 Music noise very bad

Sunday 17:01:16 Music blasting

Thursday  21:01:16 Music playing/shouting/laughing very loud

Monday 11:04:16 Noise from TV laughing/shouting

Thursday  21:04:16 Customers very noisy

Saturday 30:04:16 Shouting, laughing and banging. Screaming re football.
Loud music from TV all day and evening

| had noise recording equipment installed in my property in my bedroom between
06:11:15-13:11:15, 11:12:15 - 23:11:15 and 05:02:16 — 16:02:16.

In addition to the above, | have also approached the Police on noise issues and the
behaviour of The Sports Lounge staff.

Although the Police confirmed that they were unable to help with regard to the noise

issue, they were of assistance regarding various threats that were made against me by
the said staff.

Page 29



In particular, in late June 2015, after a particular noisy event | was approached by
Ahmet Melin during the early evening at my flat. In the course of our conversation
Ahmet Melin said ‘watch your home'. | asked was he threatening me? To which he
replied ‘all 'm saying is, watch your home’. As stated earlier, this was reported to the
Police and was logged as Incident No. ??

On Wednesday 9" December 2015 after yet another session of of continuous noise
and music disturbance, | went downstairs to the Sports Lounge. This was at
approximately 00:40hrs. At this time | spoke to Artan Zefi who | understand runs the
Bar. During our conversation | confirmed my annoyance and anger regarding the very
loud noise noise the club was making. To this he said that | ‘..must watch out as this
will come crashing down on my head'.

End of Statement

Page 30



THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND NOT
TO BE COPIED AND SERVED ON THE DEFENCE

Address: Brentwood Borough Council

Telephone: Home: BUSINESS: wooecieeecieeccee e

Delete dates that witness is not available for Court during 6 months following
date of the Statement

Month of Month of Month of

1 12 |13 14 |65 |6 |7 |1 12 |3 14 (|5 16 17 |1 ]2 |3 |4 [51]86 |7

8 19 |10|]11]12[(13]|14([8 |9 (10|11 (12|13 |14 (8 |9 [10]|11 (12|13 |14

15116 117118 |19 120 (21 |15(16 |17 {18 (19|20 (21 |15]16 |17 |18 |19 [20 | 21

22 123124125126 (27|28 |22 |23 |24 [25|26[27 |28 22|23 |24 (25|26 |27 |28

29 130 {31 29 [ 30 [ 31 29 130 | 31

8 |9 (101111213148 |9 |10|11 |12 |13 (148 |9 |10|11|12}|13 | 14

15116 |17 118119120121 }15]|16 |17 |18 19|20 |21 |15 |16 |17 |18 |19 )20 | 21

22 123 (24 (25|26 |27 128 |22 (23 [24 (25 (26 (27 |28 (22 [23 {24 |25 26|27 |28

29 130 | 31 29 130 31 29 130§ 31

Contact point, if different from above: ...

AUAAIESS: covieviieeeietirttie s ereaesseesaesaasetstessassatsssesssesseseessssssssssnnnsssnssnssnsnnsnsnsnnnsnassassensesnes

Telephone NO: ... se e

STATEMENT TAKEN BY: (Print NAME) ........ccccooiiviiiiiiriecercreneeceeseec e s seeeennessesanenes
Time statement taKen: ......coveeceiieieieeieeecreeecreerseesseresenees

PIACE TAKEN: et cec et eeeereteresser s s s asesesssssesstsatrsesesnesrtrennneeeaeenennrn e e anennn

[PD/SOWEH.1]

Page 31




Appendix 4
STATEMENT OF WITNESS

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1(1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF: Allan Wright

Age of witness (if over 18 enter "over 18") over 18

Occupation of withess: Environmental Health Technician

STATES: This statement (consisting of 2 pages, each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is
tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the day of

Signature: ...

My name is Allan Wright and | am a Environmental Health Technician within the
Environmental Health Section at Brentwood Borough Council. My
responsibilities include investigating allegations of noise nuisances, which
includes carrying out noise monitoring.

A noise complaint from the Sports Lounge was reported to this department and
was assigned to Stephen Blake, Environmental Health Officer at that time. As
part of Stephen Blake’s investigation he organised for noise monitoring to be
undertaken. This monitoring was undertaken using the Norsonic 140 recording
equipment.

Initially the equipment was installed by Stephen Blake on Friday 6 November
2015 at Flat 3, 40 High Street, Brentwood and was then collected by me on
Friday 13 November 2015.

This equipment was further installed on Friday 11 December 2015 again at Flat

3, 40 High Street, Brentwood by me. The equipment was set up in the front

bedroom of the complainants ﬂﬂﬁ . mogrged the microphone on a tripod and
age



placed it on the bedside draw unit. | gave the complainant instructions on how
to use the recording equipment, explaining that the equipment constantly
monitors sound levels and the noise can be recorded for three minutes by
pressing the button on the attached control so that the light came on, illustrating
the equipment was recording. I instructed the complainant to keep a log of the
noise and how it affected her during the period of time the monitoring
equipment was installed.

On the 14 December 2015 | returned to Flat 3, 40 High Street in order to correct
some minor faults relating to the Norsonic 140 and after checking that the
equipment was operating correctly, left the equipment at the flat for the
complainant to use. | collected the equipment on Wednesday 23 December 2015
and noted that although recordings had been made, | observed that at the latter
stage the equipment had not been operating correctly. | returned the Norsonic
140 back to the office for evaluation.

| returned to the complainants property on Friday 5 February 2016 and reset the
Norsonic 140 and again left instructions on its use.

The equipment was then removed by myself on Tuesday 16 February 2016 and
returned to the office. | believe the equipment had been working correctly and
suitable recordings made.

END OF STATEMENT

Page 33



THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND NOT
TO BE COPIED AND SERVED ON THE DEFENCE

o Lo (=TT TR

.........................................................................................................................

Telephone: Home: ... BUSINESS: ..o,

Delete dates that witness is not available for Court during 6 months following date of
the Statement

Month of Month of Month of

1 12 |3 |14 |5 16 |7 |1 12 |3 |4 |5 |6 |7 [1 12 (3[4 (516 |7

8 [9 {1011 (1213|148 |9 |10 |11 ]|12]13|14]|8 |9 |10 1112113 |14

15116117118 (1912021 | 15116 |17 118119120 (21 |15[16 |17 {18 |19 (20 [ 21

22 (23 (24 (25 [(26[27 |28 122 (23 (24 (25126 (27 (28|22 (23124125126 |27 |28

29 130 31 29 130 | 31 29 | 30 | 31

8 [9 [10]11(12([13]14[8 [9 (10|11 (12113 |14 (8 |9 |10[11]12]13 |14

15116 |17 118 119120121 |15 |16 |17 |18 119120121 1511617118 ]19[20 |21

22 123 (24125126 |27 128122123 |24 |125[26 |27 (28122123 |24|25([26 |27 (28

29 [ 30 [ 31 29 130 [ 31 29 |1 30 | 31

Contact point, if different from above: ..o e

P Ve (o 1T PR

Telephone NO: .....ooiiici e

STATEMENT TAKEN BY: (Print NAME) ........cccociriiriiirircteccinecce st csene s sene s sne s
Time statement taken: .......eveeiiiiveeiiieeieeeeereee e

Lo P2 TaT= R €= 1= o

Page 34




[PD/SOWEH.1]

Page 35



Actions relating to Review of The Sports Lounge

Appendix 5

Since the initial complaint made in 11th May 2015 we have received complaints about loud noise and have
carried out actions on the following dates:

Date Time Time Nature of noise
from until

11:05:15 | 10:04 NA Complaint received

13:05:15 | NA NA Arrangements made re visit

30:05:15 | 22:30hrs | 23:40hrs | Visit to Flat 3 by S.P.Blake & D. Carter (Env. Health & D.
Leonard & G. O'Shea (Licensing)

03:05:15 TEN8B167 received

06:06:15 | NA NA Representation from Env. Health regarding submission

i of TEN88167 ]

14:06:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturtance

15:06:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

17:06:15 | NA NA Warning Letter sent from Env. Health

15:07:15 | 14:00hrs | NA Meeting with Ahmet Melin at the Sports Lounge: Peter
Jones, S.P.Blake and D.Leonard attended from BBC

12:08:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

26:10:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

01:11:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

06:11:15 Setting up of Sound Level Meter (SLM) equipment by
S.P.Blake

13:11:15 Collection of SLM equipment by Allan Wright

07:12:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

09:12:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance.
Noise from TV & shouting

11:12:15 | 14:35hrs | 15:00hrs | Setting up of SLM equipment by A.Wright

12:12:15 | 20:30hrs | 23:30hrs | Visit to Flat 3 by D. Carter & D. Leonard

14:12:15 Re-setting up of equipment (due to malfunction of SLM)
by A.Wright

23:12:15 Collection of SLM equipment by A.Wright

28:12:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

11:01:16 Warning letter sent with regard to 'Private Party ‘held

17:01:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

21:01:15 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

05:02:16 | NA NA Setting up of SLM by A.Wright

16:02:16 Collection of SLM by A.Wright

11:04:16 Email confirmation from complainant; noise disturbance

16:04:16 | 24:00hrs | 00:30hrs | Visit to Flat 3 by D.Leonard and Neil Haycock (EHO)

Page 36




Page 37



5 BRENTWOOD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Appendix 6

Mr. A Adams Date: 17th June 2015
AA Trading Ltd Our Reference: 15/000678/NOIMUS

4 George Leybourne House
Fletcher Street

London

E1 8HW

Dear Mr Adams,

Environmental Protection Act 1990
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
Re: Alleged noise nuisance at 40 High Street Brentwood Essex CM14 4AJ

This Service has received a complaint alleging that loud amplified music/TV and shouting at the
above premises is causing a noise nuisance. The Council has an obligation to investigate such
allegations and at this stage it is unknown whether the complaint can be substantiated, but | am
advising you in order to bring it to your attention. If you have not been responsible for the noise or
feel that the complaint is not justified, please do not hesitate to contact me to discuss the matter
further.

If however, further complaints are received, the Council will make investigations to attempt to
determine whether the noise is justified and if it is likely to amount to a statutory nuisance. If
necessary, monitoring may be undertaken either directly by Council officers, or by the installation
of digital recording equipment to ascertain the nature and level of the noise. You should be aware
that the complainant(s) has been requested to keep a diary of events.

In deciding whether the noise amounts to a statutory nuisance the Environmental Health Officer
has to consider a number of factors, including the loudness, time of day, frequency and duration of
the noise. It is an offence under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to cause a noise nuisance.

I trust that you will take steps, if appropriate, to ensure that further action is not required with
regard to this matter. If you have any further queries, or wish to discuss the above, please contact
me at these offices.

Brentwood Borough Council, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex, CM15 8AY
tel 01277 312500 fax 01277 312 743 minicom 01277 312 809 www.brentwood.gov.uk

Page 38



All enforcement decisions that this Service makes are in conformance with the Council’s agreed
enforcement policy. A copy of this policy will be sent to you on request or you may down load a

copy from the Councils’ website: www.brentwood-council.gov.uk

| thank you for your co-operation with regard to this matter.

Yours Sincerely,

Mr Steve Blake

EHO

Environmental Health & Licensing
Telephone:

Email: stephen.blake @brentwood.gov.uk

Page 39

C.C. Mr A Adams
40 High Street
Brentwood
Essex.

CM14 4AJ

C.C. Licensing Authority
Brentwood Borough Council
Town Hall

Ingrave Road

Brentwood

Essex

CM15 8AY



Appendix 7

Licensing Authority
Brentwood Borough Council
Town Hall
Brentwood
Essex CM15 8AY
Application Reference: TEN88167
Date: 6" July 2015
Dear Sirs

Re: The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood CM14 4AJ
Temporary Event Notice

Further to the above application of the 3™ July 2015, | confirm that Environmental Health
(Pollution Control and Food and Health and Safety) have a particular concern. Therefore with
regard to the above premises, the Environmental Health Authority wish to make representation
against this application as the applicant has not satisfactorily addressed the steps they intend to
take to promote the licensing objectives relating to The Prevention of Public Nuisance.

The reasons for our representation are detailed as:
The Prevention of Public Nuisance

e There is concern relating to the premises internal structure. At present, the acoustic
structure of the property is poor. Any amplified music will therefore cause nuisance,
particularly late into the night and early hours of the morning.

As this issue needs to be considered, it is thought that the matter can only be resolved by
presenting the application in its entirety before a Licensing Sub-Committee.

If | can be of any further assistance in this matter please do not hesitate to contact me at the
contact details below.

Yours Faithfully,

Steve Blake

Stephen Blake | Environmental Health Officer | Brentwood Council
T 01277 312647 | F 01277 312743 | www.brentwood.qov.uk | stephen.blake @ brentwood.gov.uk

Page 40



Page 41



& BRENTWOOD]
Wiy BOROUGH COUNCIL

Appendix 8
Mr A Adam,
AA Trading Ltd.
The Sports Lounge,
40 High Street,
Brentwood,
Essex. CM14 4AJ

Date: 11th January 2016
Our Reference: 15/000678/NOIMUS

Dear Mr Adam,

The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex

| write with regard to a ‘private’ event that was held at the above premises on Saturday
12th December 2015 between 20:30 — 23:30hrs (approximately). The noise from this
activity, a party, incuding recorded music provided by a DJ was heard by Mr D Carter
Environmental Health Manager at a nearby residential property where the loudness was
considered significant and constituted a nuisance.

This form of activity is unacceptable and is an intrusion to neighbouring residential
properties. With this in mind, this authority requires that your business does not play
loud amplified music, whether for private or commercially related purposes.

Additionally, your present License does not allow you to provide recorded music as a
form of entertainment and if this were to persist, the Licensing authority may be able to
take formal action.

In order to satisfy this requirement, | will require confirmation from you, in writing, that
The Sports Lounge will not play or allow the playing of any amplified music from the
property whilst it is in the ownership of your company.

If a noise nuisance were to persist, this Council will have no option other than to serve
an Abatement Notice on you/your company under Section 80, Part |1l of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Brentwood Borough Council, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex, CM15 8AY
tel 01277 312 500 fax 01277 312 743 minicom 01277 312 809 www.brentwood.gov.uk

Page 42



v BRENTWOOD]
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Appendix 8

Should you have any queries regarding this matter, please contact me.

Yours Sincerely.

Mr Steve Blake

EHO

Environmental Health & Licensing
Telephone:

Email: stephen.blake @brentwood.gov.uk

Brentwood Borough Council, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex, CM15 8AY
tel 01277 312500 fax 01277 312743 minicom 01277 312 809 www.brentwood.gov.uk

Page 43



Appendix 9
Brentwood Borough Council, Environmental Health and Pollution (Responsible

Authority), Planning and Environmental Health, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood,
Essex CM15 8AY

Application for the review of a premises licence or club
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

Supporting Evidence for Review
Noise recordings of Flat 3, 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex
The noise recording equipment was placed in the complainant’s bedroom. Each noise

recordings are approximately 3 minutes in length. These are the recordings taken over the
period the monitoring equipment was installed.

TRACK DATE DAY START TYPE OF NOISE
NO. TIME
1% set
Set-up- 1 11:12:15 Friday 15:30hrs N/A
2 v ¢ 23:07hrs Talking/Conversation audible
3 v v 23:11hrs Talklng/conversation/shouting
4 “ “ 23:47hrs Talking/conversation/shoutingloud shaut *Wooah!' (50 dBA)
2™ set
1 12:12:15 Saturday 00:09 hrs Talking/conversation/shouting/loud shout 'Yeah!' (45dBA)
2 ¢ “ 00:12 hrs N s “
3 “ “ 19:46 hrs Very loud bass/music/shouting/ ‘Happy Birthday’ (Stevie
Wonder) clearly heard
February
recordings
1% set
Set up- 1 05:02:16 Friday 14:45hrs Set-up
2 “ e 22:53hrs Talking/conversation/babble of voices
3 “ “ 22:56hrs {not assessed, as above)
4 B ¢ 23:46hrs Talking/shouting/conversation
5 v “ 23:36hrs Talking/shouting/conversation
6 “ “ 23:48hrs Shouting/jeering (up to 47 dBA)/Muslc from TV (35-38 dBA)
7 06:02:16 Saturday 18:39hrs TV clearly heard/General babble of voices
8 09:02:16 Tuesday 20:44hrs Muslc heard/TV audible
9 ¢ “ 20:48hrs (as above)
10 20:51hrs (as above)

1 Y v 21:53hrs Muffled voices just audible

22:16hrs Very ioud multiple cheers (57dBA) & shouting (46-47 dBA)
further cheers @ 51 dBA (duration 1 minute)

13 12:02:16 Friday 23:22hrs Music/bass from TV audlble/talking

14 “ B 23:27hrs Talking/conservation

15 “ “ 23:37hrs Loud cheer (45dBA)/ Microphone (45 dBAY TV music
audible/Shouting-argument=outside?

16 13:02:16 Saturday 00:21hrs Conversation/low level bass muslc/unknown banging-tapping?

17 " “ 00:24hrs Music clearly heard/audible/conversation

18 “ “ 00:28hrs Music clearly heard from TV

2™ set

19 14.02:16 Sunday 17:53hrs Very loud cheering (57 dBA) (approx 15 seconds)/

conversation

Note: The talking/conversation Is exactly like the noise/babble from a Bar/Public House, heard almost continually. Bold events
are particularly bad.

Signed g\&\ ........ \\\l l‘ ..........................

Date ’Lg'aé/ 18

.................................................................




Page 45



Appendix 10

X BRENTWOOD H
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

| Premises licence number PRM_0075 |

Part 1 — Premises detalils

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Brentwood Snooker Club
40 High Street

Post town | Brentwood | Post code | CM14 4AJ
Telephone number |

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

1. Sale of alcohol
2. Indoor Sporting Events.

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Supply of Alcohol:-

1. Monday to Sunday 11.00 to 02.30 the following day.
Indoor Sporting Events:-

1. Monday to Sunday 11.00 to 03.00 the following day.

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Sunday 11.00 to 03.00 the following day.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies: On and off supplies

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 46



Part 2

Name, (reglstered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where reievant) of
holder of premises licence

AA Trading Ltd

4 George Leybourne House
Fletcher Street

London

E1 8HW

Aa1172@gmail.com

'Registered number of holder, for oxamz!c ccmpany number, charity number
(where applicable)

Not applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where
the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Artan Zefi

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol

BAS/PM 1955 issued by Basildon District Council

Dated 23™ April 2015

AM

for Licensing Authority

INFORMATIVE

THIS LICENCE DOES NOT CONFER ANY APPROVAL UNDER THE PLANNING
ACTS OR BUILDING CONTROL REGULATIONS.

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 47




Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence at a time
when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the
Premises Licence.

2. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence at a time
when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal
Licence or his Personal Licence is suspended.

3. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or
authorised by a person who holds a Personal Licence.

4. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not
carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation
to the premises. In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any
one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities,
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumptlon on the premises.

a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are
designed to require or encourage, individuals to —

(i drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other
than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a
time limit or otherwise);

b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or
for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a
particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a
prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of
alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional
posters or flyers on, or in the viclnlty of, the premises which can
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-
social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any
favourable manner.

e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without
assistance by reason of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available.

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 48



6. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must
ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The designated premises
supervisor in relation to the premises licences must ensure that the supply
of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy. The policy must require individuals who appear to the
responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may
be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:-

(a) a holographic mark or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

7. The responsible person shall ensure that —

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers
in the following measures —

(i) beerorcider: % pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other
printed material which Is available to customers on the premises;
and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify
the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware
that these measures are available.

8. Where a programme includes a film in the 12A, 15 or 18 category no person
appearing to be under the age of 12 (and unaccompanied in that case), 15 or
18 as appropriate shall be admitted to any part of the programme; and the
licence holder shall display in a conspicuous position a notice in the
following terms -

PERSONS UNDER THE AGE OF [INSERT APPROPRIATE AGE] CANNOT BE
ADMITTED TO ANY PART OF THE PROGRAMME.

Where films of different categories form part of the same programme, the
notice shalil refer to the oldest age restriction.

This condition does not apply to members of staff under the relevant age
while on duty provided that the prior written consent of the person's parents
or legal guardian has first been obtained.

9. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at speclfied times one or
more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each
such individual must be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence
granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001 or be entitled to carry
out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 49



10. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for

11.

12

13.

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the
permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 10 —
(a) “duty”is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties

Act 1979
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+(DxV)
where —

(i) Pis the pemitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol,
and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or
supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which
there is in force a premlses licence —

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a
licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d) *“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which
there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the
club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or
officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) *“value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with
the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph 11 would
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given
by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that
sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by sub-
paragraph (b) of paragraph 11 on a day (“the first day”) would be different
from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14
days beginning on the second day.

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 50



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1. Except in an emergency, patrons and staff shall use the front entrance of the
club only.

2. A 14 day CCTV system shall be maintained and used at the Licensed Premises
24 hours a day.

«

Computerized records of all members, including photos names and addresses
shali be kept.

4. All staff shall be trained to deal with emergencies.

5. A two-way intercom between the outside front door and the bar shall be
maintained and used.

6. A panic button linked to the Licence Holder's Head Office which will immediately
call the police if necessary shall be maintained at the Licensed Premises.

7. Every visitor to the club shall sign the visitor's guest book stating their name and
address.

8. Non-members shall not be admitted after 22.30.

9. Patrons after 22.30 will be assessed via the camera located at the front door to
ensure they are a member.

10.A first aid medical kit shall be available at ali times.
11. Any patron found to be causing a nuisance shall be barred from the Club.
12.There shall be no playing of music at the Licensed Premises.

13.No children under the age of sixteen years shali be permitted on the Licensed
Premises.

14. Any fruit machines shall be situated in the bar area where bar staff have clear
access and sight of the same,

15.Indoor sporting events shall be restricted to the playing of snooker.

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 51



EMBEDDED CONDITIONS
1. CHILDREN IN BARS (NO CHILDRENS CERTIFICATE)

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the
permitted hours unless one of the following applies:

(1) He is the child of the holder of this premises licence.

(2) He resides in the licensed premises, but is not employed there.

(3) Heis in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the
premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient means of
access or egress.

(4) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed fitted and
intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of this licence is
ancillary

In this condition “bar” includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption
of alcohol but an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set apart for the
service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an ancillary to
their table meals.

2, CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO PREVIOUS LICENCE:-

1. No intoxicating liquor shall be supplied for consumption off the premises except
to a member in person.

2. Alist of the names and addresses of all members of the said club shall be kept
on the premises and produced on demand for inspection by a constable in
uniform.

3. No application shall be made under the authority of the licence for the grant of
an occasional licence.

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 52



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

N/A

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 53



This licence is issued subject to the following attached plans:

Plan titled First Floor Plan Brentwood Snooker club.

Annex 4 - Plans

-—

t ¥ }
9ob. MoV OOL L IWTS gwos oL Lo¥

- [T e 1@ ~
U SN N ZMUAY R RDLSNY), 7 — uhiwou,_\mn Swu. ‘
2.7 STIAMIS TWNSITT ¥z SINYIY 2o

-

OCOMINIHE L33HIS HIIH 09 L (D) egampn T mC
BT UINCOHS GOOMINIGE
NY ¥001d 1SHY

t
\ e VAN |
! w SO w oo Yoy W
| 300 By > i i B o8- oy
] " )
_ [t z
it uaL =
! B |
: 3 -y M
~ % m \.ﬁ \; T I ) t
! s famss S DI -t R (y-—— — o e m.ﬂ.uuq.
@ vt B
: P T W
V—fa - ‘_

[y SR
e

R T L S Pty o FREYELY

annN J
_ i : 2

& =
o e it PO ] i 4 -
; "
. 1
3 o
= — il + H - e s,
- . 1
h :
.3 I ) ‘ . .
o Y i3
:
N e ! - >
¥ b P
i i
' 5 K
] o o
E w : =
2 ; ;
£l S o
—y=2 a PAE

15/00008/LAPRE

Page 54




Page 55



Appendix 11

Recent advertising of The Sports Lounge activities

Page 56



Page 57



Appendix 12

Environmental Health authority’s closing summary

The Sports Lounge is situated off from the High Street in Brentwood. It advertises itself as
not only a sports entertainment venue but also available for Private functions, Stag parties
and Birthday parties. The premises is authorised to carry out the licensable activities of sale
of alcohol and Indoor Sporting Events.

When seeking a Review of the Premises Licence, it must be asked what the applicant hopes
to achieve from the hearing. During a sustained period not enough has been done by AA
Trading Ltd to address the promotion of the Licensing objective ‘The Prevention of Public
Nuisance’. It is the Environmental Health Authority’s contention that, with the prevention of
Public nuisance being of importance and genuine concern, the premises is not currently or
confidently addressing this objective and the suspension of the premises licence until these
concerns have been satisfactorily addressed should merit serious consideration.

It must be said that the current License has conditions relating to the use of the premises as
a quiet Snooker hall where the current conditions reflect this use. AA Trading Ltd have, on
taking over the Licence abandoned this particular licensable use and have now opted for
activities such as televised sporting events which can draw in large boisterous crowds and
have extended their remit to now including parties and functions. Both the License and the
structure of the property are not, unfortunately, fit for this type of activity and both are
unsuitable for this present activity. In essence at present, the present License is not fit for
purpose.

The Environmental Health Authority has been in regular communication with AA Trading Ltd
who in fairness, have taken occasional steps in the past to address this Licensing objective
when concerns were raised. However, during a meeting with the premises manager it was
confirmed that the Licensee had no intention of carrying out any preventative acoustic
works. One accepts that in the current economical climate, financial circumstances have to
enter into the equation, but it is unacceptable to continue subjecting nearby residents to
nuisance. The Environmental Health authority suggest that if AA Trading Ltd cannot provide
sufficient measures to deal with the nuisance issue, they should close The Sports Lounge to
Public functions and licensable activity until they can.

Alternatively, a reduction in the hours of licensable activity at the premises will serve to
ease these concerns in the residential community.

Should the appropriate measures be taken, the Committee may see fit to impose further
conditions to ensure that they are robustly adhered to.

Lastly, as music has been witnessed being played after 11pm it is strongly recommended
and requested that the Committee consider removing the exemptions under the provisions

Page 58



Appendix 12

Environmental Health authority’s closing summary

of the Deregulation Act 2015 and the Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order
2014, in respect of live and recording music respectively. This will effectively enable the

Licensing Authority to grant variation of the License to condition both activities in order to
ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Page 59



Dave Leonard

From: Stephen Blake

Sent: 02 June 2016 10:37

To: Licensing; Dave Leonard

Cc: Gary OShea; David Carter

Subject: The Sports Lounge: Review by Environmental Health and Pollution- Ref. No. RP129369
Attachments: Full Report + Appendices 02 06 16.pdf

Importance: High

Dear Licensing,
With regard to the above, please find enclosed an ‘electronic’ version of the Review. As there was difficulties with
regard to the attached supportive information, in the form of 12 Appendices, regarding the ‘on-line’ submission

these are enclosed in this attached document.

Additionally, at the moment, the Statement of David Carter Environment Manager is yet to be submitted. This is to
ve forwarded on as a supplementary report shortly.

The Licensee’s copy is to be sent today, first class.
Should you have any queries, please contact me.
Yours Faithfully,

Steve Blake

Stephen Blake | Environmental Health Officer | Brentwood Council
T 01277 312647 | F 01277 312743 | www.brentwood.gov.uk | stephen.blake @ brentwood.gov.uk

Page'60



Page 61



Dave Leonard

From: Stephen Blake

Sent: 02 June 2016 23:43

To: ‘Aa1172 @gmail.com'

Cc: Licensing; Dave Leonard; David Carter

Subiject: Review of Premises License PRM 0075 The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street Brentwood
Essex CM14 4AJ

Attachments: Full Report + Appendices 02 06 16 2nd Ver (Redacted).pdf

Importance: High

AA Trading Ltd.

4 George Leybourne House,
Flether Street,

London.

E1l 8HW

Dear Mr Adams,

Licensing Act 2003
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Re: Review of Premises License PRM 0075 The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street Brentwood Essex
CM14 4AJ

With regard to the above, | confirm that Environmental Health and Pollution being a responsible authority
have requested a Review of the existing License (PRM 0075).

Copies have been forwarded to Brentwood Licensing Authority and all of the responsible Authorities involved.

Please find enclosed a copy of this authorities Review documentation with this correspondence for your
attention. Additionally, | confirm that a copy has also been sent to you via email today.

Should you have any queries regarding the above, please contact me.
Should you have any queries relating to the Licensing process may | suggest that you contact Brentwood’s
Licensing authority direct.

Yours Sincerely,

Steve Blake

Stephen Blake | Environmental Health Officer | Brentwood Council
T 01277 312647 | F 01277 312743 | www.brentwood.qgov.uk |_stephen.blake @ brentwood.qov.uk

Page'62



Page 63



Application for the Review of a Premises Licence or a Club Premises Certificate
Reference: RP129369

Application for the Review of a Premises Licence or
a Club Premises Certificate

I (name of applicant)* The Environmental Health and Pollution Authority
apply for the review of a* premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act
2003 for the premises described in Part 1

Part 1 - Premises Details

Does the premises have a postal address?* [ves

Premises address
Please enter the postcode (including the space) and click the 'Look up Address' bution

Flat Number (if any) | FIRST FLOOR

|

House / Building Name or Number#* 40

Road Name* HIGH STREET

Town BRENTWOOD

County T yy———r
Post Code* CM14 4A)

Name of premises licence holder (if known) The Sports Lounge

Number of premises licence (if known) [pRM 0075 ]

Part 2 - Applicant Details

I am* | a responsible authority

Details of Responsible Authority Applicant

Name* | Environmental Health and Poliution
Address

If you are looking for a Brentwood address, please enter the postcode (including the space) and click the
'Look up Address’ button.

Flat Number (if any)

1
House / Building Name or Number* ITOWN HALL
Road Name* INGRAVE ROAD
County
Post Code*
Telephone number*
Email address

Re-enter email address | stephen.blake@brentwood.gov.uk |

This application to review relates to the following D the prevention of crime and disorder
licensing objective(s)*
D public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
D the protection of children from harm

Please state ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)*

Page 64




The Environmental Health and Pollution authority are requesting a Review of the premises license for The Sports
Lounge at 40 High Street, Brentwood, Essex under the Prevention of Public Nuisance objective.

The Environmenta! Health and Pollution authority have been investigating the premise under the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 for allegations that a noise nuisance exists at residential properties on the High Street,
Brentwood.

The investigation has provided evidence that a noise problem exists and has the likelihood to recur. This conclusion
has been established through the collection of evidence from sound monitoring equipment, witness statements and
Log sheets.

The premises License holder was informed about complaints via letters posted on 17th June 2015, and a
subsequent letter on 11th January 2016 and by a meeting held at the premises on Wednesday 15th July 2015.

On Wednesday 13th May 2015 Environmental Health and Licensing officers attended the complainants Flat at
approximately 10:30pm. The officers witnessed noise from amplified TV music and commentary together with loud
shouting and voices from customers emanating from the Licensed premises. This noise continued at the same level
until the officers left at 11:40pm later that evening.

This activity, and many other subsequent ones, has not addressed one of the key Licensing objectives ‘The
Prevention of Public Nuisance’. As a consequence, the Licensee has not confidently addressed this objective.

It is noted that there are no permissions on the current license permitting any form of live or recorded music.
Whilst both of these activities are deregulated on alcohol licensed premises between 8am and 11pm daily, it has
been witnessed that music has gone on past these hours. This premises is therefore seemingly conducting unlawful
licensable activity.

The opinion of the Environmental Health team is that the building is inappropriately designed for the type of
activities that are undertaken in the Sports Lounge. Primarily, the properties structure is acoustically
unsatisfactory between floor levels.

I therefore suggest that due to the complaints received and monitoring evidence undertaken, that The Sports
Lounge at 40 High Street, Brentwood is now operating outside the original Licensing requirements/conditions of the
current License. The present use, that of Televised sporting events, parties and functions are not suitable and are
incompatible with the structure of the property and the present activity’s being carried out.

Due to the continued breach of the License objective ‘The Prevention of Public Nuisance' it is therefore
recommended that since the noise nuisance cannot be controfled by Management or through the use of conditions
that the Licence be suspended until AA Trading Ltd can provide sufficient measures to dea! with the noise
nuisance issue. Such measures must satisfy the Environmental Health authority’s concerns.

Recommendations

¢ Suspend the licence until suitable measures are carried out to alleviate, to the satisfaction of the Environmental
Health Authority, the noise nuisance issue currently being experienced in the Flats immediately above The Sports
Lounge.

or

e The Committee may consider the reduction in the hours of Licensable activity at the premises in order to serve
to ease the concerns in the residential community.

As The Sports Lounge is now effectively operating as a bar, with entertainment, the ‘Good Practice Guide on the
Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs’ (Institute of Acoustics) confirm that (Para 2.4) ‘for premises where
entertainment takes place less frequently, music and associated sources should not be audible inside noise-
sensitive property between 23:00 and 07:00hrs’".

It is suggested that this time limit could be set as a provisional requirement until the Licensee could make suitable
provision to install satisfactory acoustic works to isolate the Clubs activities from the residential properties.

Additionally:

* The Committee may see fit to impose further conditions to ensure that the Licensing objectives are robustly
adhered to.

¢ If the licence, following the review is not suspended, it is strongly recommended and requested that
consideration be given to removing the exemptions brought about under provision of the Deregulation Act 2015 and
the Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014, in respect of live and recording music respectively.
This will have the effect of removing the ability to undertake any performance of unregulated live and/or recorded
music between 8am and 11pm requiring an application from the Licence holder to vary the licence to include either
or both activities. It will enable the Licensing authority’s granting the variation, to condition both activities in order
to ensure adequate promotion of the licensing objectives, particularly with regard to Public Nuisance.

Page 65




e It is also evident that despite speaking and writing to the license holder on numerous occasions and over a
sustained period of time in an attempt to address matters in an amicable fashion, there has been no attempt by
the licence holder to work with the authority to do this. This is evidenced through the fact that there has not
been a single response to any of our letters and absolutely no measures have been put in place to reduce the
nuisance being caused and witnessed.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance note 2)*

Schedule of attached documents (forwarded on as hard copy/email)
Appendix 1 Statement of Stephen Paul Blake Environmenta! Health Officer, Brentwood Borough Council
Appendix 2 Statement of Maria Redman complainant

Appendix 3 Statement of David Carter: Environmenta! Health Manager, Brentwood Borough Council (to be supplied
later as a supplementary report)

Appendix 4 Statement of Allan Wright: Environmental Health Technician, Brentwood Borough Council
Appendix 5 Actions relating to Review of The Sports Lounge
Appendix 6 Correspondence from Environmenta! Health to Licensee regarding noise problems dated 17th June 2015

Appendix 7 Correspondence regarding representation from Environmental Health against an application for a
Temporary Event Notice (TEN88167) dated 6th July 2015

Appendix 8 Correspondence from Environmental Health to Licensee regarding noise problems dated 11th January
2016

Appendix 9 Supporting Evidence; selection of noise recordings of The Sports Lounge
Appendix 10 Copy of Premises Licence
Appendix 11 Recent advertising of Sports Lounge activities

Appendix 12 Environmental Health Licensing Authorities Closing Summary
Have you made an application for review relating to this | No |
premises before?*

If you have made representations before relating to this premises, please state what they were and when you made
them*

Application Reference: TEN88167
Date: 6th July 2015
Dear Sirs

Re: The Sports Lounge, 40 High Street, Brentwood CM14 4A)
Temporary Event Notice

Further to the above application of the 3rd July 2015, I confirm that Environmental Health (Pollution Control and
Food and Health and Safety) have a particular concern. Therefore with regard to the above premises, the
Environmental Health Authority wish to make representation against this application as the applicant has not
satisfactorily addressed the steps they intend to take to promote the licensing objectives relating to The
Prevention of Public Nuisance.

The reasons for our representation are detailed as:

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

e There is concern relating to the premises internal structure. At present, the acoustic structure of the property is
poor. Any amplified music will therefore cause nuisance, particularly late into the night and early hours of the
morning.

As this issue needs to be considered, it is thought that the matter can only be resolved by presenting the
application in its entirety before a Licensing Sub-Committee.

If I can be of any further assistance in this matter please do not hesitate to contact me at the contact details
below.

Yours Faithfully,

Steve Blake

Note: The TEN Application was withdrawn on receipt of this representation

Page 66




I understand that copies of this application will be sent M
by the licensing authority to the responsible authorities

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate*

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER

SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION.

Part 3 - Signatures

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (Please read guidance note 4). If
signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature (name)* |S.P.Blake |
Date 02 Jun 2016

Capacity Environmental Health Officer

Is the correspondence name.and address associated witH No |

this application different that which has already been
given? (see guidance note 5)*

Page 67




STATEMENT OF WITNESS

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.1(1);
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

STATEMENT OF: David John Carter
Age of witness (if over 18 enter "over 18") Over 18

Occupation of witness: Environmental Health Manager

STATES: This statement (consisting of two pages, each signed by
me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and |
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be
liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything
which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 13th day-efMay 2016
Q)
Signature: ...... nmg\*%.__‘ ....................................

| am employed as an Environmental Health Manager by Brentwood
Borough Council.

On Saturday 30" May 2015 | visited Flat 3 40 High Street, Brentwood,
Essex accompanied by Stephen Blake, Environmental Health Officer,
Dave Leonard, Licensing Officer and Gary O'Shea, Principal Licensing
Officer to meet Maria Redman at approximately 10:30pm. At the time of
this visit there was audible music from TVs in the bar playing music
channels and from customers present in the bar, who were heard
shouting whilst a football match was being played. The noise from the
bar was likely to cause disturbance to someone in the flat.

On Saturday 12" December 2015 | again visited the flat, accompanied
by Dave Leonard, Licensing Officer.

We met Maria and made observations of noise from the Sports Lounge,
40 High Street, Brentwood which is situated directly below the flat.

We had been advised that there was a private party at the premises and
it was possible to hear clearly music and announcements being made by

a DJ playing in the b@

[PD/SOW.EH]\ Sports Lounge Statement

Page 68



Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27.1(1)
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

WITNESS STATEMENT OF (CONT'D) Page

It appeared from the announcements that the event was a birthday party
and we could hear a young child's voice on the microphone. The music

from the DJ's performance was clearly audible within the flat and at a
level | would consider intrusive and likely to interfere with the use of the
flat.

After the birthday party we saw the DJ's equipment being removed from
the premises and put into a vehicle parked below the flat, which left after
loading.

Later the same evening | heard a broadcast of a boxing match being
shown at the Sports Lounge. The sound of the broadcast being played
on several TVs in the premises and loud voices of customers in the bar
could be heard in the flat.

in my opinion the noise from both the amplified music and customers
watching the boxing match were causing an unreasonable interference
with the use of the fl&

[PD/SOW.EH]\ Sports Lounge Statement

Page 69



Page 70



SPORTS LOUNGE 40 HIGH ST, BRENTWOOD Gvil4 4AJ

APPENDIX 2

REPRESENTATIONS
RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

Dave Leonard
(Brentwood Borough Council Licensing)

Peter Jones
(Essex Police Licensing)

26 JULY 2016
Page 71



Page 72



SPORTS LOUNGE - LICENSING REPRESENTATION 14JUN16

My name is Dave Leonard and | have been employed by Brentwood Borough Council as a
Licensing Officer since February 2014.

| was aware that the BRENTWOOD SNOOKER CLUB, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD
CM14 4AJ had been closed for some considerable time before | started in my post. | also recall
receiving a telephone enquiry from a Mr BROWN relating to the premises licence, the hours of
licensable activity and conditions attached, and the options for taking the transfer of the
premises licence by settling the outstanding annual renewal fees.

One THURSDAY, 5™ MARCH 2015 at 1.05PM, | was in the HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD
when | noticed some men taking dismantled snooker tables out of BRENTWOOD SNOOKER &
POKER CLUB, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ and loading them onto a van.

| identified myself to the two males and walked in and upstairs to the snooker club. It was
apparent that everything was being cleared out of the premises. There were two IC2 males
talking at the bar area and clearly overseeing the process. | approached the men and identified
myself and asked what was happening. One of the men introduced himself as the manager and
stated that he was working for his business partner, ALF, who was the new three year
leaseholder having taken over two weeks ago. | asked who ALF was and the male gave me the
details of Alfie ADAM, together with a mobile phone number and an e-mail address. | was
making a note of this information and asked the male his name and who he was in relation to
this. The man challenged why | needed his details and | explained | was merely noting this as
there would need to be further communication relating to the premises licence that had been
suspended for non-payment of annual fees. Again, | asked the man’s name and he said, “ALI". |
said, “ALI what?” He said, “Just ALL.” He clearly did not wish to disclose his details and stated
that | didn’t need to know them and that he was just a friend of Mr. ADAM. He stated that their
solicitor Winston BROWN was dealing with all legal matters and that he would be organizing the
payment of any outstanding fees. | then recalled that it was a Mr BROWN who had contacted
me previously regarding this premises and so | accepted ALI’s account and left.

I now know this man who was claiming to be ALI when we first met as Ahmet MELIN.

On TUESDAY, 17™ MARCH 2015 at 1.50PM | received a call from a man claiming to be Mr.
Alfie ADAM who wished to have a copy of the invoices for the BRENTWOOD SNOOKER &
POKER CLUB so that he may settle the outstanding fees. | referred him to Mrs Sue COOK in
the debts department.

On FRIDAY, 10™ APRIL 2015 at 12.30PM whilst in the HIGH STREET, | noticed a large banner
outside BRENTWOOD SNOOKER CLUB, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ
adverting ‘THE SPORTING LOUNGE — GRAND OPENING 24™ APRIL .

On MONDAY, 13™ APRIL 2016 at 10.40AM, | attempted to contact Mr. Alfie ADAM on the
contact number provided regarding the grand opening advertisement outside the BRENTWOOD

Page 73



SNOOKER CLUB, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ and the fact that the Licensing
Office had not received any documentation relating to a transfer of the licence, an application to
vary the designated premises supervisor or if the licence was even still compliant with the
premises plans and layout. There was no reply after repeated ringing and a voicemail message
was left. | made a second call that day at 12noon and again there was no reply and another
voicemail message was left. AT 12.45PM | received a call back from Mr. ADAM who confirmed
a site visit meeting appointment for the following day, 14™ APRIL at 11.30AM with general
manager, Mr. Ahmet MELIN (ALI), the Principal Licensing Officer, Gary O'SHEA, and the Police
Licensing Officer, Peter JONES.

On TUESDAY, 14™ APRIL 2016 at 11.30AM, together with Gary O’SHEA and Peter JONES, |
attended the BRENTWOOD SNOOKER CLUB, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ
and met with Ahmet MELIN, who now described himself as the manager. He provided me with
details of a home address, an e-mail address and a mobile phone number. | noted that there
were a number of fixed booths being fitted by the windows overlooking the HIGH STREET.
There were also eleven (11) flat screen TV'’s (2x 65” & 9x 50”) being fitted around the walls. We
were also shown out on to the flat roof at the rear of the premises accessible through a fire
escape door. Once outside, | noted that there was a fire escape to the rear of the shopping
parade and access to residential flats immediately above the snooker club. Mr. MELIN stated
that it was their intention to adapt the outside flat roof terrace to become a smoking and café
area. | voiced my concerns that this was not a practically sound idea with residential flats
immediately above, unsecured access from the rear, no safety assurances that the roof was
constructed for such use and if it would be fit for purpose and the surrounding walls at the edge
of the roof appeared dangerously low to safeguard customers using that area. | also noticed
three poker tables in the middle of the floor. When asked if he was removing them along with
the snooker tables, Mr. MELIN stated that they looked nice and was going to keep them there
as a feature. He stated that he didn’t know much about gambling or the processes but was
planning to let customer ‘play’ for free just as a sideline attraction. Mr. MELIN also re-iterated
that all the advertising and promotion was geared towards the grand opening on 24™ APRIL.
Mr. O’'SHEA advised Mr. MELIN that no transfer application had been received. Nor had an
application to vary the designated premises supervisor been submitted. More importantly, the
premises had been converted beyond recognition of the members-only snooker club that the
licence had been issued for. The new layout of the premises no longer resembled that of the
plan for which the licence had been granted and Mr. MELIN was advised to apply for a variation
of the premises licence once the transfer had been completed. It was also made clear to Mr.
MELIN that the required consultation period for any kind of variation would extend past 24™
APRIL and, therefore, would interfere with his grand opening plans. Mr. MELIN then intimated
that he would return the snooker tables and recreate the licenced area to reflect the plans of the
current premises licence because he was desperate to proceed with the grand opening as
advertised. Mr. MELIN claimed that he wasn’t overly familiar with licensing procedure and asked
for our assistance to facilitate his business plan. It is my opinion that this appeared to be a case
of someone seeing a 3AM premises licence in the HIGH STREET and wishing to operate to that
without consideration to the conditions or surrounding features that applied to it. It was also my

Page 74



concern that the proposed operating schedule bore no resemblance to that of the premises
granted a licence to run a members-only snooker hall.

On WEDNESDAY, 15™ APRIL at 10.30AM, | spoke with Peter JONES (Essex Police Licensing)
and at 1PM | had a meeting with Elaine HANLON (Environmental Health — Food Health &
Safety) and Dean BAKER (Planning) all colleagues that also representing responsible
authorities to discuss my concerns relating to the proposed business plan.

At 2.40PM I received an online application from Mr. Alfie ADAMS to transfer the premises
licence to AATrading Ltd. (15/00008/LAPRE refers). However, the application was incomplete
as no accompanying consent form from the outgoing premises licence holder, Mr. Yilfer
SHEVKET, had been received. At 3.05PM, | contacted Mr. ADAM to advise him of this and he
was unable to talk and assured me that he would call me back in half an hour to resolve the
matter. Having not received a call back by 5.45PM, | once again called Mr. ADAM. | advised him
of the concerns that I, and colleagues from other responsible authorities, had with the current
premises licence and that an application for a full variation would be necessary if they intended
to continue with the change of business operation that they were proposing. | advised that |
believed that a food registration certificate was required 28 days prior to opening and a planning
permission to change use from D2 to A4 or A3 would also need consideration. | also informed
Mr. ADAM that the consent form to transfer the premises licence from Mr. Yilfer SHEVKET was
required to complete the application plus a designated premises supervisor variation and
consent form was required before alcohol may be sold on the premises. In light of the proposed
24™ APRIL grand opening, | advised that there was a need for an urgent joint meeting to
discuss and assist with the options available. | suggested that there was little chance that the
administration could be completed before 24™ APRIL and advised that a warning notice would
follow to clarify the position.

On THURSDAY, 16™ APRIL at 11.55AM, | received a call from Mr. MELIN where | explained
the position exactly as | had to Mr. ADAM the previous day. | drafted a warning letter detailing
the points raised and e-mailed it to both Mr. ADAM and Mr. MELIN and posted a hard copy to
AATrading Ltd. Later that day, at 4PM, | received a further call from Mr. MELIN where we spoke
for thirty minutes discussing the points detailed in the warning letter. At the conclusion of this
conversation, Mr. MELIN stated that he would be re-installing the snooker tables and re-
addressing his operating schedule in order to comply with the conditions of the current premises
licence in an effort to obviate the need to seek a variation.

On FRIDAY, 17™ APRIL at 1.30PM, | received a call from Mr. MELIN claiming that the current
premises licence holder, Mr. SHEVKET, had had to rush out to a family emergency and had yet
to complete the consent form.

On MONDAY, 20™ APRIL | re-sent the warning letter to both Mr. ADAM and Mr. MELIN and on
TUESDAY, 21°T APRIL at 2.10PM, | received a further call from Mr. MELIN once again seeking
to clarify the need for completing the transfer and DPS variation consent forms again.

I was away from the office for the remainder of that week but | am aware of an e-mail
confirmation from Principal licensing Officer, Gary O’'SHEA, that an e-mail response was sent to

Page 75



both Mr. ADAM and Mr. MELIN on FRIDAY, 24™ APRIL 2016 at 2.56PM confirming that the
transfer and DPS variation applications were now administratively satisfactory - despite not
notifying the Licensing department of a change of name to the premises - and that were now
able to have their grand opening as requested on the proviso that they were operating in strict
compliance with the terms and conditions of the premises licence.

On MONDAY, 27™ APRIL at 2PM, | visited the premises now known as The SPORTS
LOUNGE, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ and spoke with the new designated
premises supervisor, Mr. Artan ZEFI to ensure that he was aware of the strict membership
rules. There was a blonde barmaid employed behind the bar and | noted that there were two
shooker tables and three pool tables spread around the floor. There were four seating booths
situated by the window facing onto the HIGH STREET and some lounger settees situated in the
centre of the floor.

From SATURDAY, 2"° MAY to MONDAY, 11™ MAY | was on leave but during this period | was
made aware of a late night boxing event that took place at The SPORTS LOUNGE on
SUNDAY, 3%° MAY. The Floyd Mayweather fight screened live from America continued well
past the hours permitted on the premises licence and no Temporary Event Notice (TEN) had
been applied for to cover the additional hours the premises continued to stay open.

On MONDAY,11™ MAY at 1PM, | watched BBC CCTYV footage of persons still leaving the
SPORTS LOUNGE at 6AM after Mayweather fight on 3°° MAY. At 3.15PM, | visited The
SPORTS LOUNGE, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ. There were approximately
ten people in the premises and one snooker table and one pool table was in use. | noted that
the rear fire door onto the flat roof terrace was wedged wide open. The blonde barmaid
recognized me and advised me that the new food menus would be arriving tomorrow and that
business was steady. | asked why the rear fire was propped open to which she replied, “It’s the
heat. It's so hot in here.”

On WEDNESDAY, 13™ MAY at 10.30AM, | viewed the many media posts relating to the boxing
event the SPORTS LOUNGE hosted on 3t° MAY and then later that day, at 1.10PM, | had a
case conference with David CARTER and Steve BLAKE, colleagues from the Environmental
Health Noise Pollution team following a complaint received by, Ms. Maria REDMAN, a resident
from a flat above the premises.

On FRIDAY, 15™ MAY at 1.45PM, | spoke with Ms. Maria REDMAN who stated that the noise
coming from the SPORTS LOUNGE immediately below her flat was excessive and unbearable
and continuing well into the early hours of the morning. That evening from 10PM, | was
conducting pro-active licensing visits in the HIGH STREET together with Gary O'SHEA. We
passed The SPORTS LOUNGE at 11.10PM and noted one black male dressed in the traditional
all-black outfit of a door supervisor and standing at the entrance to the premises. | could not see
a SIA badge visible on display upon his person. He was engaged in conversation with three
street pastors. We returned to the location at 12.25AM (SATURDAY 16™ MAY) and the
premises was locked up and in darkness and | observed Mr. MELIN driving away in his Black
Audi motor vehicle.

Page 76



On THURSDAY, 28™ MAY at 1.20PM, | received a call from Mr. MELIN stating that he had
been given the safety okay for the smoking area on the roof terrace from Mr. Gary PRICE in the
Building Control Office at the Council. | advised Mr. MELIN that, with the changes that had been
made, he still needed to apply to vary the premises licence and | expressed my disappointment
that he had not already done so. | pointed out my concerns regarding this sports-themed
premises showing transatlantic boxing matches that continued on way past the hours of
licensable activity especially when no TEN has been applied for. | said, “I'm sure that you
wouldn’t do that” to which he replied, “Of course not.” | again reminded Mr. MELIN that he was
required to comply with the terms and conditions of the current premises licence. | also asked
Mr. MELIN to call me on MONDAY, 1°T JUNE to arrange a meeting with Mr. ADAM to discuss
the variation but | was advised that Mr. ADAM was out of the country for at least two weeks
playing poker professionally in Las Vegas.

On SATURDAY, 30™ MAY from 10PM, | was deployed on licensing enforcement duties with
Gary O’'SHEA in Brentwood HIGH STREET. At 11.30PM, we visited Ms. Maria REDMAN at her
flat above The SPORTS LOUNGE, 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ where we
also joined Environmental Health — Noise Pollution officers and colleagues, David CARTER and
Steve BLAKE. | could clearly hear people taking loudly in the bar downstairs. Shortly afterwards
at 11.40PM, Mr O’'SHEA and | left the flat to conduct a licensing visit at The SPORTS LOUNGE.
The two persons that we had seen on door security fifteen minutes earlier were now gone and
the front entrance door was shut. | buzzed the entry phone and identified myself. Approximately
fifty seconds later Mr. MELIN opened the door and greeted us. Ten customers left within two
minutes of our arrival. Mr. O’'SHEA and | then went through the premises licence conditions with
Mr. MELIN and the DPS, Mr. Artan ZEFI. | asked questions regarding the membership
requirement and whether every customer currently in the premises was a member. Mr. MELIN
said, “It's being sorted on the computer now but it’s not ready.” He then claimed that he thought
that the condition relating to members only related to persons entering after 10.30PM and
challenged the wording of the condition as entered on the premises licence. Mr. O’'SHEA
conceded that the wording may be construed as ambiguous. This was not my feeling but it did
re-enforce my argument that the premises licence was in need of being varied to clarify matters.
| asked if there was a CCTYV fitted and operating. Mr. MELIN said, “We have 31 days coverage.
24/7. | said, “24/7?” MELIN said, “24/7.” | said, “Do you care to show me how it works then?
For example can you show me the footage recorded on 4™ MAY, please?” From the confident
response and address of previous question, Mr. MELIN appeared a little startled at the request
and said, “I can’t operate it. Only the technician who fitted it can do that.” He then showed me a
USB plug and claimed that any coverage request would be downloaded to a USB memory stick
and made available. | made a request to see that footage of the date referred to and said to him
that | was interested to see at what time they were open to when showing the Mayweather fight.
Mr. MELIN smiled and said something along the lines of okay | put my hands up it may have
gone on a little late but I didn’t realize | could apply for an extension. | apologize. | explained that
for a premises operating to the hours it does and not being a restaurant, it was all the more
reason for having a CCTV system fit for purpose and capable of immediate reviewing and, more
importantly, that should be a condition on the premises licence which it currently wasn’t. Mr.
MELIN said, “You’re not happy that | gave you that false name when we first met, are you? Can

Page 77



we start again? After all we will be working together.” | admitted that | was not impressed with
his initial attitude and did not expect to be lied to but conceded that it was time to move on.
Once again, | re-iterated my concerns that this current premises licence was granted to a
private members snooker club. | didn’t require conditions of a late night licence at that time
because is was a snooker hall. No music. No flat screen TV’s around all the walls. No high
volume vertical drinking culture. No smoking legislation requiring people to go outside into areas
that may be a nuisance to residents. It was a snooker club where people played snooker period.
Mr. MELIN again made reference to the flat roof at the rear that he intended to make a smoking
and outside eating area and the conversation he had been having with Gary PRICE. | told Mr.
MELIN that all | was interested in was that he was operating to a set of conditions on a premises
licence that were relevant to the business and that he was operating in compliance with the
promotion of the four licensing objectives. | told Mr. MELIN that if he was prepared and willing to
do that we would get on fine. We then shook hands and Gary O’'SHEA and | then left the
premises. Despite the request being made for the USB stick covering events of 4™ MAY, | was
never offered nor did | receive it.

On THURSDAY, 4™ JUNE at 11.40 AM, | conducted a visit to The SPORTS LOUNGE and
observed the rear fire exit onto the flat roof was wide open. Mr. MELIN was also present and |
advised him accordingly.

On TUESDAY, 16™ JUNE at 12.05PM | received a call from Mr. MELIN who was still seeking to
seek up a meeting to discuss a variation of the premises licence. He advised that he would e-
mail me with dates to avoid — so as to include the premises licence holder, Mr. ADAM — within
the next week. No such e-mail was subsequently forthcoming.

On FRIDAY, 37° JULY the Licensing Office received a Temporary Event Notification (TEN) from
the DPS, Mr. Artan ZEFI, for a proposed event described as ‘Party — We are proposing to have
an event held from 9pm Saturday 18th July Sunday 19th July 2am. The events entertainment
will consist of one hour of live music (finishing before 12 midnight) and recorded music played
for the rest of the evening. We propose that we limit the event to a capacity to 120 people and
have 3 certified security staff at the venue.’

On MONDAY, 6™ JULY, | received a representation against the TEN from Mr. Stephen BLAKE
(Environmental Health Noise Pollution Officer) raising concerns regarding public nuisance. At
4.48PM, | made a call to Mr. Alfie ADAM regarding the TEN and there was no reply. | left a
voicemail message requesting a call back.

On TUESDAY, 7™ JULY at 2PM, | called Mr. MELIN to make further enquiries about the TEN
and to advise him that the Noise Pollution Officer had made a representation against it. He
stated that a band that was performing at the Brentwood Festival (that same weekend) would be
playing. | advised of the concerns especially as the Environmental Health Officer had sent a
warning letter and was currently investigating a noise complaint. Mr. MELIN stated that the letter
was only an advisory notice and claimed that the EHO had never visited the location to offer
advice. | advised him that | would forward his details to Mr. BLAKE in an effort to open dialogue.

On WEDNESDAY, 8™ JULY at 3.25PM, | called Mr. MELIN to update him regarding Mr.
BLAKE’s representation. Mr. MELIN stated that he was keen to work with the Responsible

Page 78



Authorities but expressed his disappointment that he had received no contact from the EHO at
an e-mail addressany time save for the letter sent out to him. He requested a copy of the
representation and provisionally indicated that he did not wish to create ill-feeling and was 99%
likely to withdraw the application.

On THURSDAY, 9™ JULY at 9AM, | sent an e-mail to Mr. MELIN and Mr. ZEFI relating to the
representation against the TEN and at 1PM | received an eo-mail from the Sports Lounge
withdrawing the TEN.

On WEDNESDAY, 15™ JULY at 2PM, | attended a meeting with Mr. MELIN at the SPORTS
LOUNGE together with Mr. Peter JONES (Police) and Mr. Steve BLAKE (EHO) to discuss the
need for a full variation to the premises licence. The premises licence holder, Mr. ADAM was,
once again, unavailable. Mr. MELIN was still of the belief that a minor variation was all that was
required to remedy the concerns surrounding the premises licence. Mr. MELIN also explained
that he wished to extend the licenced area onto the flat roof by the rear fire escape and
introduce shesha pipes. | also noticed that a partition wall had been erected in the back corner
to create an enclosed room. Upon further inspection this housed a poker table and a number of
chairs. Once again, | pointed out that to continue changing the layout of the premises other than
in accordance with the premises plans was breaching the conditions of the premises licence.
Mr. BLAKE advised that the premises were not acoustically sound and that extensive acoustic
work would need to be carried out in order to protect the flats above from noise nuisance. Mr.
MELIN flatly refused to entertain this proposal as he had looked into the costing of the insulation
and it was impractical due to the expense that such work would entail.

On SATURDAY, 18™ JULY from 7.30PM, | was deployed on the Brentwood Festival event at
the Brentwood Centre. En route to attending the event, | passed the SPORTS LOUNGE at
7.50PM and noted that an A-board outside was advertising a boxing event from 9PM. There
was no excess noise emanating from the premises and no indication that they were intending to
renege on their TEN withdrawal. Following the completion of my duty on SUNDAY, 16™ JULY
at 2AM, | pulled up outside the SPORTS LOUNGE at 2.10AM. | saw that the entrance door was
ajar but in a ten minute spell, | saw two men enter the premises (one at 2.10AM and one at
2.20AM). There were no door supervisors at the entrance. | also noted a number of very
expensive motor vehicles parked outside the parade of shops. Many of the vehicles had
personalised registration plates including Mr. MELIN’s Audi.

On FRIDAY, 3157 JULY at 9.30AM, | was speaking with Mr. JONES (police) and, as a result of
what | was told, it became apparent to me why Mr. MELIN may have given me false particulars
at our first meeting and why he appeared so reluctant to have his name anywhere on the
paperwork - either as the licence holder or DPS - when he clearly manages the premises.

On WEDNESDAY, 12™ AUGUST at 10.35AM, | received a call from Mr. MELIN advising me
that new premises plans had been drawn up and that he will be ready to submit the premises
licence application this week. He also stated that he did not wish Brentwood Council to think
that he had been ignoring the process since our last meeting but then he also made mention of
a visit by uniformed police officers on the previous Saturday evening (8" AUGUST). He claimed
that an elderly police officer was quite rude to a female member of staff and queried the number

Page 79



of TV’s on background music being played. | later learned from Mr. JONES (police) that the
SPORTS LOUNGE was included in the latest round of routine police licensing enforcement
visits conducted under Operation BENISON and that no untoward concerns were raised.

On FRIDAY, 14™ AUGUST at 3PM, | was advised of public health concerns raised by the EHO
surrounding rubbish and waste being dumped in the alleyway beside the SPORTS LOUNGE.

On MONDAY, 17™ AUGUST at 2.55PM, | visited the SPORTS LOUNGE to discuss the rubbish
complaint. There were no customers in the premises. The barmaid, DANA, was the only person
there. | noticed that the premises layout had been changed yet again. The lounge settees
previously situated in the middle of the room had been removed and replaced by two-seater
tables and stools. | also noticed that the partition wall had now been completed and painted and
there were now posher seats in the poker room. | advised DANA of the complaint about the
rubbish and she stated that it had been dealt with and that they were awaiting the delivery of a
waste bin. | checked the alley when leaving the and, sure enough, it was clean and clear.

On TUESDAY, 18™ AUGUST at 12.25PM, | re-visited the SPORTS LOUNGE with Mr. JONES
(police). Once again, only DANA was on the premises. | noted that there was a fruit machine in
the poker room and two further AWP’s in the bar area opposite the counter. DANA contacted
Mr. MELIN by phone and handed it to me. Mr. MELIN claimed that he would be submitting the
premises licence variation that night. He quoted the £190 fee he had noted on the online
application and then enquired if he needed a solicitor or agent. | advised that, with all that has
gone on previously, it wouldn’t be a bad idea although if cost was an issue, the online process
would be perfectly acceptable. No application was forthcoming.

In the meantime, | contacted Mrs. Heidi HARDS from the Gambling Commission to seek advice
over my concerns that the SPORTS LOUNGE was operating poker games.

On WEDNESDAY, 9™ SEPTEMBER at 11.25AM, | received a call from Mr. MELIN advising me
that he had just paid off a bottle collection fee of £231 to the Council and was keen to arrange a
meeting with Mr. Alfie ADAM to assist with completing the application to vary the premises
licence. | advised that | would facilitate this meeting once that I'd consulted with the other
responsible authorities and considered all dates to avoid.

On FRIDAY, 18" SEPTEMBER at 2.48PM, | called Mr. MELIN to inform him that 6™
OCTOBER at 1.30PM would be a suitable date. There was no reply on his mobile phone and so
I left the information on a voicemail. Having not received any further return call, on THURSDAY,
24™ SEPTEMBER at 11.40AM, | called Mr. MELIN and got to speak to him. Mr. MELIN
confirmed that he had received my voicemail message last week despite not responding and he
stated that Mr. ADAM may, once again, be unavailable for the meeting on 6™ OCTOBER as he
may be away in Pakistan this time. However, Mr. MELIN promised me that he would confirm
this date by e-mail that afternoon. Needless to say, no e-mail was sent. | stressed that this
meeting is very important and the matter needs to be resolved. | again suggested that, as all
business goes through Mr. MELIN, why did he not transfer the premises licence into his name
so that we could conduct all matters directly with him and without the need to involve Mr. ADAM.
Mr. MELIN agreed that this would be a good idea and stated that he would put this suggestion
to Mr. ADAM.

Page 80



On TUESDAY, 29™ SEPTEMBER at 2.40PM, having still not received e-mail confirmation of
attendance for the proposed meeting on 6™ OCTOBER, | attended the SPORTS LOUNGE. Mr.
MELIN was unavailable and a further request for e-mail confirmation was left with bar staff
member, RACHEL.

Finally, on 1°" OCTOBER at 11.45AM, | received a confirmation call from Mr. MELIN accepting
the invite to attend the meeting set for 6" OCTOBER. He stated that the DPS, Mr. ZEFI would
also be attending but, unfortunately, Mr. ADAM would be unavailable as he is in Pakistan and
would only be returning for three days on 10™ OCTOBER before going back to America. Once
again, | requested an e-mail confirmation of this. | sent a third request e-mail at 12.37PM and
finally received an e-mail confirmation response at 2.23PM that day.

On TUESDAY, 6™ OCTOBER at 12.45PM, together with Gary O’'SHEA and Peter JONES, |
met with Mrs. Heidi HARDS and Mr. Clive NOBLETT, officers from the Gambling Commission in
a pre-meeting before attending the SPORTS LOUNGE. Mr. NOBLETT had been involved in a
previous investigation against Mr. MELIN who had applied for, and been granted, a Club
Gaming Permit and Club Premise Certificate in 2011 for The Big Bluff Private Members Club in
Enfield, the location being a former snooker hall. At 1.30PM, we all went to The SPORTS
LOUNGE and met with Mr. MELIN and Mr. ZEFI. Upon seeing Mr. NOBLETT and Mrs. HARDS,
Mr. MELIN immediately very aggressive and abusive, a side of his character that | had not seen
before. The police explained that the Gambling Commission had been invited merely to inspect
the premises and advise in their area of expertise. Mr. MELIN repeatedly swore, claiming that
he had been ambushed and that the Gambling Commission had nothing to do with his licence.
He refused to interact with the officers and repeatedly told them to ‘fuck off out of his premises’.
| did ask if he would kindly refrain from swearing in the presence of a lady but he did not wish to
relent and insisted that they leave the premises. In the interests of having a constructive
meeting and having seen the premises, the officers consented to leave. Almost immediately, Mr.
MELIN’s demeanour changed and he was apologetic for his outburst claiming that it was Mr.
NOBLETT who was responsible for him going to prison. Mr. MELIN admitted that this is why he
had been less than candid initially because of his previous reputation. He denied that poker was
being played on the premises and showed us the room that had been created by the partition
wall. The poker table had been dismantled and two dart boards put up on the wall for use by the
club’s dart team. Mr. MELIN also stated that he had represented himself at previous licensing
hearing and so | asked him if he did have knowledge of the Licensing Act and procedure to
which he replied, “Of course | do.” | said, “So this apparent naivety shown by you has all been a
big bluff?” Mr. MELIN gave me a big grin. The concerns surrounding the operating schedule of
this premises and the need to put in a place a premises licence that is fit for purpose was once
again reiterated and Gary O’SHEA undertook to supply Mr. MELIN with a wish list of conditions
required by the responsible authorities to enable him to complete an application for the full
variation of the premises licence by Friday 9" OCTOBER. A maximum terminal hour of 1AM
was also provisionally accepted.

On WEDNESDAY, 14™ OCTOBER at 3.30PM, | received a call from Mr. MELIN chasing up
when Mr. O'SHEA'’s wish list e-mail would be sent. | advised him that | would chase things up. |
also told him that | had heard from third party sources that his place was still the place to go for
poker. Mr. MELIN totally refuted this claim and stated that the partition wall was to be taken
down again and no poker was being played.

On FRIDAY, 16" OCTOBER at 11.20AM, | was advised by Mrs. Elaine HANLON
(Environmental Health Principal Food Safety Officer) that a kitchen closure warning notice had
been served to Mr. Ibrahim HALIL at the SPORTS LOUNGE.

Page 81



On FRIDAY, 23%° OCTOBER at 4.05PM, Mr. O’'SHEA e-mailed the wish list of potential
acceptable licensing conditions to Mr. MELIN, copying in both Peter JONES and myself.

On FRIDAY, 30™ OCTOBER 2016 at 12.33PM | received a response from Mr. MELIN advising
that the online application should be completed and submitted later today. No such application
was received.

On FRIDAY, 11™ DECEMBER, | was made aware that the Environmental Health Team was
intending to install a Sound Level Meter (SLM) in Flat 3 above the SPORTS LOUNGE following
further noise nuisance complaints. It was my intention to attend the appointment with the EHO
but | was otherwise delayed. | was also made aware by the finance administration team that an
outstanding annual premises licence fee for the SPORTS LOUNGE, the reminder letter having
been sent out to the premises licence holder on 30" NOVEMBER, had still not been paid. The
Principal Licensing Officer, Mr. O'SHEA, issued an immediate Notice of Suspension of a
Premises Licence letter to Mr. ADAM and at 3.35PM, | attended the SPORTS LOUNGE to
deliver a copy of the Suspension Notice letter to the manager. The member of bar staff,
RACHEL, stated that ‘DANNY’ had just popped out. | waited ten minutes and ‘DANNY’, who
turned out to be the DPS, Mr. Artan ZEFI, returned. We both attempted to contact Mr. MELIN
but he was not answering his phone. Mr. ZEFI offered to settle the outstanding fee with cash
after a visit to the bank but | advised him that | could not take cash. Instead, | offered him the
opportunity to attend the Town Hall before 4.30PM to pay the outstanding and allow me to issue
a withdrawal of the Notice of Suspension letter which they had to receive before they could
recommence licensable activity in accordance with their licence at the premises. For the
avoidance of doubt, | made it absolutely clear to Mr. ZEFI that all licensable activity was to be
suspended with immediate effect until the outstanding fee was settled and a letter withdrawing
the Notice of Suspension was received. | advised Mr. ZEFI that the council offices closed at
4.30PM on a Friday and he assured me that he would attend in plenty of time and settle this
matter. | returned to the Town Hall, advised my colleagues in the Reception of the situation and
awaited Mr. ZEFI's attendance. | was waiting in the Reception area at 4.30PM when the doors
were closed. He did not attend. | received no courtesy telephone call or e-mail advising of any
delay or update.

| was aware that British Heavyweight boxing champion, Anthony Joshua, was fighting on the
evening of SATURDAY, 12™ DECEMBER and that the SPORTS LOUNGE was a staunch
supporter of his fights. At 8.15PM, | began an evening of licensing enforcement visits with David
CARTER (EH manager). At 8.30PM, we drove past the SPORTS LOUNGE. The entrance door
was open and | noticed a man standing immediately outside who appeared to be a door
supervisor. We parked up and at 8.40PM we attended FLAT 3, 40 HIGH STREET to meet with
Ms. Maria REDMAN who advised us that a party had just started and the noise recording
equipment has failed. We listened to the noise coming from the SPORTS LOUNGE from both
Ms. REDMAN’s bedroom, which is apparently directly above the bar area, and her lounge.
There was a DJ playing music and mixing tracks and this was very audible and Ms. REDMAN
showed how she had to turn her television in the lounge up to top volume of 100 to be able to
hear it over the music downstairs. | was content to be guided by Mr. CARTER, the EH noise
pollution specialist, in relation to noise nuisance action. Certainly, | considered the noise level
intrusive and detrimental to the occupier’s quality of life. By 9.30PM, the party was in full flow
with everyone singing and chanting ‘happy birthday’. | then heard what sounded like a child’s
voice on the microphone singing ‘Happy Birthday, lan’. | could hear the party actually finish at
10PM and then distinguish the televisions going on by distinctive the sound of the
commentators at ringside. Looking out onto the HIGH STREET at 10.20PM, | observed what
appeared to be the DJ loading his decks and equipment into the back of a car parked directly

Page 82



outside the SPORTS LOUNGE. BY 11PM, the fight appeared to be in full flow as the noise had
increased. There was a lot of shouting, cheering and swearing and this was clearly audible. At
about 11.18PM, the noise peaked to a crescendo where it became apparent that there had
been a winner. There was the sound of a lot of movement downstairs and | soon became aware
of a lot more noise outside on the street directly outside the entrance. | could see several men in
a jovial state, discussing the fight and smoking. At 11.30PM, we left the flat and went to conduct
a licensing visit to the premises. As we approached the entrance to the SPORTS LOUNGE
there were about six men still outside smoking and talking with raised voices. I'm advised that
this term is called a temporary threshold shift. The men were not aggressive or threatening but
they were loud and they were using the most profane language when debating the post-fight
analysis. One of the men kindly advised me that ‘Joshua fucking knocked him out in the
seventh!” We entered the premises and went upstairs to the bar. There was no door supervisor
at the entrance and at no point were we challenged or asked to identify ourselves or produce
membership details as required in the conditions on the premises licence. Once upstairs, |
noted the premises was still busy with a predominantly male customer base although they did
appear to be steadily leaving or preparing to leave. | saw the DPS, Mr. ZEFI, serving alcohol to
a customer from behind the bar. Have served the male a pint of beer, he looked in my direction
and immediately came over to greet me. We then all went from the bar area to the stairwell in
order that we could hear each other speak. | told Mr. ZEFI that | had waited at the Town Hall
reception until it closed at 4.30PM for him to attend and pay the outstanding licence fee and that
| didn’t even receive so much as a courtesy call that he couldn’t attend. | also reiterated that |
had made it absolutely clear why the Notice of Suspension letter was served on him and what it
specified. | repeated that he should not be conducting licensable activity, including the sale of
alcohol, until the outstanding fee had been settled and the suspension had been officially lifted
in the form of a written notification. This procedure had not been followed. Mr. ZEFI twice
insisted that the fee had indeed been paid by Mr. MELIN on Friday evening. | asked if he could
provide me of direct evidence of this. Clearly, out of office hours, | was unable to confirm this
claim and | was not inclined to believe Mr. MELIN based on past failed assurances. In any case,
they had not received written notice lifting the suspension. Mr. ZEFI stated that they had hosted
a private birthday party and claimed that it wasn’t very noisy with no more than sixty persons
present. Mr. CARTER and | then left the premises at 11.45PM.

On MONDAY, 14™ DECEMBER, | made enquiries relating to this outstanding annual fee with
Mrs. Sharon GALE in the Council Debt Recovery office and was advised that the outstanding
fee of £295 was paid on online on FRIDAY, 11™ DECEMBER at 4.05PM. At 5.30PM, | sent an
e-mail letter to Mr. ADAM and Mr. MELIN advising that the Notice of Suspension had been lifted
| received no response, written or otherwise, from any party connected with the SPORTS
LOUNGE following the events of the weekend. No explanation of events and no apologies.

On THURSDAY, 7™ JANUARY 2016, the Licensing Office received an application from AA
TRADING LTD (submitted on 6™) for a variation to the premises licence at The SPORTS
LOUNGE. However, there were a number of sections that were not satisfactorily completed or
addressed and | had to reject the application as invalid and arrange for a reimbursement of the
fee. | notified Mr. ADAM and Mr. MELIN of the grounds for rejecting the application in an e-mail
and suggested that if they were still having difficulties completing the application that they
should seek the advice of a licensing agent or solicitor. Once again, | received no confirmation
of receipt of my e-mail or response to the matters addressed.

| felt that the application did not address any of the concerns that we had repeatedly identified in
past meetings with Mr. MELIN. This led me to question whether it had ever been Mr. MELIN’s
intention to work with the licensing department.

Page 83



On MONDAY, 11™ APRIL at 3.05PM, | received a call in the office from Mr. ZEFI asking if
anything could be resolved with the smoking area proposed for the flat roof area at the rear. He
claimed that it would be a better way of controlling the customers. Having not heard anything
from anyone connected with the SPORTS LOUNGE since the Notice of Suspension in
December 2015 (no verbal interaction was forthcoming with the ill-fated application to vary the
premises licence in January 2016), | was curious that this enquiry came on the Monday after the
weekend of the latest televised Anthony Joshua fight. | asked how fight went at the weekend
and he said that there were no issues and that it was a lot quieter these days. | said, “Do you
still have noise concerns raised?” Mr. ZEFI said, “Only one person complains. The woman
above. They should know what to expect when they move in above such a venue like those at
the Slug and Lettuce.” | said, “My point exactly. When they move in to such accommodation.
She was there when it was a licenced snooker club. No flat screen TV’s. No music. No outside
smoking. Membership only. My point exactly.” | advised Mr. ZEFI that | was very disappointed
that | hadn’t heard from anyone at the SPORTS LOUNGE since the Notice of Suspension on
14™ DECEMBER 2015. | told him that I've yet to have a meeting with the elusive Alfie ADAM
who is always out of the country and a year has passed and nothing on the licence has been
addressed. | advised him to speak with the EHO regarding any designated smoking areas.

On the evening of SATURDAY, 16™ APRIL from 10PM, | was deployed on licensing
enforcement visits with Environmental Health Officer and colleague, Mr. Neil HAYCOCK, where
we conducted a number of visits to locations that had been subject of noise complaints.

At 11.50PM we passed the SPORTS LOUNGE and all appeared quiet. | noted that Ms.
REDMAN was upstairs in her lounge and so we conducted a courtesy call to see how current
situation was. On this occasion | could hear no more than the occasional scraping of a chair on
the floor and there were no noise issues apparent.

On WEDNESDAY, 25™ MAY at 12.40PM, | visited the SPORTS LOUNGE to deliver an invite to
the forthcoming Brentwood Borough Pubwatch meeting that had been set for 1°" JUNE. The
primary objective of this meeting was to address the upcoming UEFA European Football 2016
Tournament and offer practical guidance and assistance through Borough networking. It was my
belief that The SPORTS LOUNGE, by definition, would benefit from attending this meeting.
There was a single barmaid, Miss Jess CARRON, working behind the bar and only two persons
in the bar playing pool. | was advised that both Mr. MELIN and Mr. ZEFI were unavailable and
so | left an invite together with directions to the event with her against a signature of receipt.
Needless to say, no representative from the SPORTS LOUNGE was present at the meeting on
15T JUNE and no written or verbal communication of apologies for absence was received either
before or after the event.

On THURSDAY, 2"° JUNE, the Licensing Office received an application seeking the Review of
the premises licence at The SPORTS LOUNGE from Mr. Stephen BLAKE on behalf of the
Environmental Health team citing that the premises licence holding had failed to promote the
licensing objectives with regard to the prevention of public nuisance. Mr. BLAKE later advised
me that he had served a copy of the Review application personally to the SPORTS LOUNGE.
At 6.05PM, | attended the SPORTS LOUNGE to post the Review notices where | met Mr. ZEFI,
who had just started at work having taken over from the female bar staff at 6PM. He was
unaware of any Review papers being served on the premises and appeared genuinely shocked.
Mr. ZEFI stated that nothing had been handed over or explained by the member of staff going
off shift. He made an extensive search behind the bar and could not find any papers. | explained
the procedure to Mr. ZEFI and informed him that | had to post Review Notices outside the
premises where the public could see them. He consented to this. | handed him a further notice
for his reference and display in the bar. | then left the premises and put two notices up outside.

Page 84



One was attached above the letter box next to the entrance and the other on the outside wall.
There was no area | could pin the notices without causing damage so | carefully affixed them
with parcel tape.

On THURSDAY, 9™ JUNE at 9.40AM, following receipt of a memo from Mr. MELIN’s agent, Mr.
David DADDS, | attended the SPORTS LOUNGE to replace the Review Notices with blue
notices. | noted that the notice | had displayed by the letter box had already been removed. |
then removed the other notice without causing damage as had been implied and replaced it with
a blue notice. In all, | placed three blue notices around the entrance, again in an effort not to
cause damage, and | affixed one blue notice to the nearest lamp post.

I conducted several checks during the course of the consultation period to see if the notices
were still being displayed. On FRIDAY, 10™ JUNE at 9.30AM, they were all in place. On
MONDAY, 13™ JUNE at 9.45AM, a notice that had been attached at head height with string and
tape was no longer there. The other three notices were still in place. On THURSDAY, 16™
JUNE at 12.30PM, | drove past the SPORTS LOUNGE and noted that they now had A-boards
set out on the footway on either side of the entrance. One on the A-boards was directly
obscuring the lower placed blue notice.

On WEDNESDAY, 29™ JUNE, | was engaged in a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing at the
Town Hall relating to an application for a premises licence for a restaurant in the HIGH STREET
and sited not too far away from the SPORTS LOUNGE. Ironically, Mr. DADDS was making
representation against this application for all the reasons and concerns that | share regarding
the SPORTS LOUNGE. During the break for the decision to be reached, | renewed
acquaintances with Mr. DADDS and expressed my disappointment that Mr. MELIN had not
approached him six months earlier in an effort to address the concerns that | have with the
premises licence and seek to address and resolve them without the need for what has followed.
| invited Mr. DADDS to contact me with his client at any point to see they were prepared to allay
my concerns. The exact same concerns raised by Mr. DADDS at this Sub-Committee hearing.

I wish to make representation supporting the application to Review the premises licence
against the SPORTS LOUNGE. It is my contention that they failed to adequately promote
the licensing objectives relating to the prevention of crime and disorder, prevention of
public nuisance and potentially to public safety. From the outset, | have attempted to
work with the management of premises and to assist in improving the position with
regard to both promotion of these objectives and compliance with conditions on the
premises licence. It is my contention that the current premises licence is not fit for
purpose and the conditions attached are, in fact, being breached on a daily basis. The
premises licence at 40 HIGH STREET, BRENTWOOD CM14 4AJ was issued to
BRENTWOOD SNOOKER CLUB. It was a private members snooker club. No flat screen
TV’s. No music. No outside smoking. Membership only. There are specific rules about
entry and membership that are clearly not being complied with. The premises has a
2.30AM licence to sell alcohol in a vertical drinking environment and yet there is no
requirement specifying the need for door supervisors of the need for CCTV to be
installed. The premises plans specifically identify a number of snooker tables yet Mr.
MELIN has seen fit to remove a number of them and erect a stud-partition wall to create
an additional room without ever applying to vary the premises licence. Despite repeated
requests to meet with the premises licence holder and address the terms and conditions
of the current premises licence over an extended period, he has be unable or unwilling to
comply. Indeed, the premises licence holder has never even applied to change the name
of the premises from Brentwood Snooker Club to Sports Lounge on the licence.

Page 85



I am now aware of a number of proforma letters that have been apparently submitted
from the shop keepers in support of the Sports Lounge and claiming that they have
never witnessed any incidents of crime or disorder or anti-social behaviour at the
premises. All very interesting but these shops are closed by 6pm. | have conducted a
number of daytime visits to the premises and never seen more than handful of people
using the bar or facilities and one female member of bar staff has been more than
capable of curtailing any potential anti-social behaviour. The main issues of concern
relating to noise breakout from the premises occurs in the evenings and early hours of
the morning and a failure to adequately conform to various conditions of licence, which
in turn has led in my view to a clear failure to promote the objectives.

| produce the following documentation to support my concerns with the current
operating schedule of the premises and those concerned with managing it.

Page 86



LICENSING OFFICER’S REPRESENTATION
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

. Copy of original Premises Licence & Premises Plan issued 12" October 2005
- Also includes Summary and Club Machine Permit

. Application to Transfer Premises Licence & Vary Designated Premises Supervisor
dated 14" April 2015 + communications, consents & warning letter.

. Premises Licence & Summary issued 23 April 2015
+updates, consent & warning letter

. Concerns raised by Planning Officer & Environmental Health & Safety Officer
+ e-mail to Mr. Melin

. Mayweather vs Pacquiao Boxing Match 2-3" May 2015 social network advertising
& noise complaint. No Temporary Event Notificiation received.

. Noise nuisance complaint and advisory letter dated 17 June 2015
+ Mr. Melin’s response dated 30" June 2015

. Temporary Event Notification dated 3° July 2015 for event on 18" July 2015
+ Environmental Health Officer’s representation dated &" July 2015
& Mr. Melin’s official withdrawal communication on 9" July 2015

. Multi-partnership Meeting with Mr. Melin at Sports Lounge on 6" October 2015
+communications including third invite request, proposed conditions dated 23"

October 2015 & Mr. Melin’s response on 30" October 2015

. Food Safety Notice dated 16" October 2015 sent by Environmental Health Officer,
Elaine Hanlon, to Ibrahim Halil / Zaftag Ltd, T/A Sports Lounge

Page 87



10. Warning notice of unpaid annual licence to Licence Holder dated 30" November 2015
+ Notice of Suspension of Premises Licence dated 1" December 2015

I1. Online Application to Vary the Premises Licence dated 4" January 2016

+ Rejection letter dated 7" January 2016 deeming application invalid
12. Invitation to Brentwood Pubwatch Meeting (June Ist) signed for on 25" May 2016
13. Copy of letter advising on smoking area from Environmental Health Officer, Steve

Blake, to Sports Lounge dated 31" May 2016

14. OS Map identifying location together with a selection of images & flyers that
conflict with the premises being a members snooker club

15. Public Domain Character References; Alfie Adam & Ahmet Melin

Page 88



1. Copy of original Premises Licence & Premises Plan issued 12" October 2005
- Also includes Summary and Club Machine Permit

Page 89



Page 90



Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Premises licence number PRM_0075_000

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Brentwood Snooker Club
40 High Street
Brentwood

Essex

Post town | Brentwood | Post code | CM14 4AJ

Telephone number |

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
1. Sale of alcohol

2. Indoor Sporting Events.

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Supply of Alcohol:-
1. Monday to Sunday 11.00 to 02.30 the following day.

Indoor Sporting Events:-
1. Monday to Sunday 11.00 to 03.00 the following day.

1 PRM_0075_000

Page 91




The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday 11.00 to 03.00 the following day.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies

On and off supplies

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of
holder of premises licence

Yilfer Shevket

52 Greenleafe Drive
ILFORD

Essex

IG1 1LJ

07860 867243

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable)

Not applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where
the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Yilfer Shevket

52 Greenleafe Drive
ILFORD

Essex

IG1 1LJ

07860 867243

2 PRM_0075_000
Page 92




Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol

P00/259/LAPER issued by London Borough of Redbridge

Dated 12" October 2005

for Licensing Authority

INFORMATIVE

THIS LICENCE DOES NOT CONFER ANY APPROVAL UNDER THE PLANNING
ACTS OR BUILDING CONTROL REGULATIONS.

3 PRM_0075_000

Page 93




Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

a) i. No supply of alcohol may be made under this Licence at a time when there is
no Designated Premises Supervisor as defined in The Licensing Act 2003 in
respect of this Licence,

ii. orata time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

b) Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a Personal Licence as defined in The Licensing Act 2003.

4 PRM_0075_000

Page 94



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1.

Except in an emergency, patrons and staff shall use the front entrance of the
club only.

A 14 day CCTV system shall be maintained and used at the Licensed Premises
24 hours a day.

Computerized records of all members, including photos names and addresses
shall be kept.

All staff shall be trained to deal with emergencies.

A two-way intercom between the outside front door and the bar shall be
maintained and used.

A panic button linked to the Licence Holder's Head Office which will immediately
call the police if necessary shall be maintained at the Licensed Premises.

Every visitor to the club shall sign the visitor's guest book stating their name and
address.

Non-members shall not be admitted after 22.30.

Patrons after 22.30 will be assessed via the camera located at the front door to
ensure they are a member.

10. A first aid medical kit shall be available at all times.

11. Any patron found to be causing a nuisance shall be barred from the Club.

12.There shall be no playing of music at the Licensed Premises.

13.No children under the age of sixteen years shall be permitted on the Licensed

Premises.

14. Any fruit machines shal